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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To
The Members,
Gujarat Agro Industries Corporation Limited,

AHMEDABAD.

Your Directors are pleased to present 45th Annual Report along with the audited Accounts of the

Corporation for the accounting year ended 31st March 2015.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The financial results for the year ended 31st March, 2015 are summarized below:

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Year ended | Year ended
on on

31.03.2015 | 31.03.2014

Sales & Other Income 34,124.39 38,934.04

Operating Profit 1,924.08 2,008.06

Less: Depreciation 47.10 15.53

Operating Profit after depreciation 1,876.98 1,992.53

Add: Profit on sale of fixed assets/shares - 0.01

Less: Non operational expenses (Contribution 171.92 34.97
towards Gratuity & Leave encashment

Less (-) / Add (+) Prior Period adjustment (net) 145.71 146.58

Profit before Tax 1,850.77 2,104.15

Exceptional Item 20.24 -

Less: Provision for taxation & Tax of earlier years 655.00 721.55

Total Profit 1,175.53 1,382.60

Proposed Dividend 80.83 80.83

Tax on Proposed Dividend 16.16 16.16

Transfer to Reserve 1,078.54 1,285.61

2. DIVIDEND:

The Directors of the Corporation have recommended @ 10% dividend for the year 2014-15.

3. OPERATIONS & FUTURE PLANS:

L. Manufacturing:

a) The Corporation has a Pesticides Formulation Unit at Gondal for manufacturing of various
pesticides such as liquid, wet-able and dust products. The production during the year was
477.68 MT of wet-able and dust products & 229.07 KL of liquid products. The sale in primarily
for Government schemes, Municipal Corporations and farmers through dealers network.



Vil

b) A Liquid Bio Fertilizer Unit has been established at Naroda, Ahmedabad under RKVY. The
installed production capacity of the Unit is one lac liters per annum. Bio Fertliser Unit Naroda
has produced 426.368 KL Liquid bio-fertiliser during the year.

Trading:

The Corporation has the second largest distribution network of fertilizers in the State. It has a network
of about 1437 Agro Business Centers for sales & distribution of fertilizers, pesticides and other farm
inputs. Fertiliser is procured from Companies such as GSFC, GNFC, IPL, KRIBHCO, RCF, Chambal
Fertilisers & Chemicals Ltd. M/s. Deepak Fertilisers & Chemicals Ltd. & M/s. Liberty Phosphates Ltd
etc. We hope, their regular supply will continue in the forthcoming year and efforts will also be made
to add some more companies in our distribution network. During the year, the Corporation distributed
2.92 lacs MT of Fertilizers of value Rs. 303.96 crores.

a) The Corporation is engaged in the sales & distribution of Storage bins & bio-fertilisers primarily
under various Government Subsidy Schemes.

National Biogas & Manure Management Programme:

The Corporation is implementing National Biogas & Manure Management Programme of GOI &
GOG. During the year, 1349 Biogas plants were established & subsidy claims were released to
beneficiaries.

Gujarat Agro Industrial Policy:

The Corporation is the nodal agency for implementation of Gujarat Agro Industrial Policy. It received
28 project proposals with investment of Rs. 176.04 Crore for availing financial assistance under the
policy. During the year, the financial Assistance of Rs. 489.98 lacs for were disbursed. Under the
Policy, promotional activities such as organization/ participations in seminars, workshops, exhibitions
were undertaken.

Disbursement of subsidy under Govt. Programs:

The Corporation is one of the nodal agencies of the Department of Agriculture & Co-operation, Govt.
of Gujarat, for disbursement of subsidy under various Government programmes. During the year,
performance of Rs. 139.34 Crores was achieved.

Agri Infrastructure Projects
a) The Corporation has implemented and operationalized the following projects.

. Integrated Pack House (IPH) for Fruits & Vegetables at Naroda, Ahmedabad was approved
under RKVY scheme in the year 2008-09. The project was commissioned and handed over to
the O&M Operator, M/s Cargo Service Centre India Pvt. Ltd India Pvt. Ltd w.e.f. 27.01.2010.
After the completion of the lease period fresh tender was floated and M/S J.K. Horticulture
Export Private Limited was selected as O & M operator.

Integrated Pack House (IPH), Naroda

. Facility was handed over to J.K. Horticulture Export Private Limited in March 2015 for six months.
In the meantime, APEDA, GOI has revised SOP for handling horticulture produce for exports.
To meet these up gradation and modernization of Pack House is required. This is under process.



Banana Pack House (BPH) at Jaghadia, Bharuch with two Collection Centers was set up with
the financial assistance from APEDA and Agri-Infrastructure Development Scheme of GOG.
After commissioning, the facility was given to M/s CARGO Service Centre India Pvt. Ltd. for
operation and management. However, due to poor utilization of the facility the O&M agreement
was terminated w.e.f. 31.12.2011.

Banana Pack House and Collection Center at Jhagadia

After putting up the best efforts, GAIC had leased out the part of Banana Packhouse, Acchaliya
and Collection Centre, Vavdi to M/s Shimla Hills Offerings Pvt. Ltd Banana Pack House initially
for six months (01.07.2013 to 31.12.2013.) and the possession of the assets has been taken
over by GAIC on 31st January, 2014.

Thereafter, GAIC had leased out the two cold storages of 75 M.T of Banana Pack House,
Acchalia and a bay for loading and unloading at Rs. 50,000/- per month for the period of 12
months. However, they had vacated the BPH due to the commercial reasons.

The facility has been given to M/S Kheti Farm for operation, maintenance and management in
July 2015. At present the facility is catering to domestic market. Till October-2015 about 610 MT
Bananas have been processed.

Centre for Perishable Cargo, SVPI Airport, Ahmedabad

Centre for Perishable Cargo (CPC) at Air Cargo Complex, SVPI Airport, Ahmedabad was set
up for exports of fruits and vegetables, processed food and other temperature sensitive products.
M/s Cargo Service Centre India Pvt. Ltd was selected as O&M Agency. However, the facility
could not be operationalized due to the pending approval of Airport Authority of India. Meantime,
Airport Authority of India (AAl) has modified the policy and has allowed handling of General
Cargo and operation of Cargo terminal through contractor i.e. appointment of operation &
management contractor. Subsequently, GAIC signed a fresh supplementary License Agreement
with Air port Authority of India (AAl) as per the revised policy of CPC of Airport Authority of India.
Thereafter, GAIC has floated fresh tender document for selection of O&M Agency and the
successful bidder has been identified. However, the unsuccessful bidder moved the Hon’ble
High Court challenging the tendering process.

The Hon’ble High court directed to go for fresh tendering. In compliance of the directives of
Hon’ble High Court fresh tender was floated and M/S Cargo Service Centre India Pvt. Ltd was
selected to operate, maintain and manage the facility for five years. Commercial operations are
likely to start shortly after compliance of necessary statutory requirements.

Dehydrated Onion Cold Storage at APMC Mahuva

Dehydrated Onion Cold Storage at APMC Mahuva, Dist. Bhavnagar was commissioned on 7th
March, 2013 and the plant was operational till Dec 2014. During the current year, the plant was
non-operational on account of higher raw onion prices leading to non viability of dehydrated
onion processing units. GAIC has floated fresh tender document for selection of Operations &
Maintenance Management Agency to identify the successful bidder. As on 31st March, 2015
the plant is non operational. With Onion prices having reduced this year, this is likeli hood that
the facility will be utilized by the onion dehydrated manufacturing units. GAIC is in the process



of floating tender document for the selection of Operations and Maintenance Management
Agency.

Radiation Processing Plant for Agro and Fruit products at Bavla

The Project for Radiation Processing Plant for Agro and Fruit products at Bavla has been
sanction under RKVY scheme. The project is completed and handed over to the O&M Agency
i.e M/s Universal Medicap Ltd, Vadodara to Operate, Maintain and Manage the facility on 17th
July, 2014 for the period of 5 years. The facility has processed nearly 400.41 MT of produce
from August, 2014 to March, 2015.

Hi-Tech Potato cold storage at Deesa

Hi-tech Potato cold Storage for storing 5000 MT potatoes at Deesa, Banaskantha has been
approved under RKVY in the year 2009-10. M/s. Blue Star Limited has been selected as the
Turnkey Contractor for this project. As on March 31, 2015 the following items are to be
incorporated in the project. They are: 1) Fire Hydrant System, 2) Mezzanine floor structure and
3) Electrical Items.

Rice Flake Mill at Kosamba

Rice flake unit at APMC, Kosamba, Surat has been sanctioned under RKVY in the year 2011-
12. APMC Kosamba allotted 2455.95 Sq. mts. (26,436 Sq. Ft.) land on a long term lease of 30
years for construction of the facility. The project is in advance stage of implementation. The
inauguration of the pilot project for manufacturing of Poha at Kosamba, has been done on 13th
September, 2015. The installation of ETP is pending and is likely to be completed by January,
2016. GAIC is in the process of floating tender document for the selection of agency for
Operations, Maintenance & Management of the facility.

4, DIRECTORS:

K.S.Randhawa IFS was appointed as Managing Directors of the Corporation during the year.

Dr. Naginbhai Chandubhai Patel ceased to be Director and Dr. N.K. Singh ceased to be Managing
Directors of the Corporation during the year.

5. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the
Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that;

)

in the preparation of the accounts for the financial year ended 31stMarch, 2015, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures.

the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgment and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of profit of the Company
for the year under review.



iii) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities.

iv) the Directors have prepared the accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2015 on a
going concern basis.

v) that proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate
and were operating effectively.

vi) that systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and
were adequate and operating effectively

PERSONNEL.:

] None of the employees received remuneration of Rs.60 lacs per annum or Rs.5 lacs per month
for the part of the year, hence reporting of information as per sections 196-202 of Companies
Act, 2013 and Rule 3-10 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 does not arise.

. The relations with the Employees were harmonious and cordial during the year.
AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee consist of three member namely Shri P. B. Chaudhari (Chair Person), Shri S.
R. Chaudhari, Shri K. S. Randhawa IFS.

The Audit Committee met four times during the year on 30-06-2014, 26-09-2014, 29-12-2014 & on
24-03-2015.

BOARD MEETING:
The Board met four times during the year on 30-06-2014, 26-09-2014, 29-12-2014 & on 24-03-2015.
STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s. C.R.Sharedalal & Co., Chartered Accountants were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the
Corporation by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India for the Year 2014-15.

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India have appointed M/s. C.R.Sharedalal & Co, Chartered
Accountants, Ahmedabad as Statutory Auditor of the Corporation for the forthcoming financial year
2015-16.

As regards observations made by the Auditors in their Auditor Report, the Board has to state as
follows:

The balances of Banks, Loans and advances and other current assets have been confirmed majorly.
Other balances could not be sent/received back for confirmation due to administrative and other
constraints.

The Company has not reviewed the carrying value of Assets/Cash generating units for impairment.
This will be looked into and taken care of in the next financial year.



10.

1.

12.

13.

The Company has not recognized Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) in the Financial Statements.
The same will be taken care of in the next financial year.

The Company is in the process of making necessary provisions for eliminating the obsolete and
no existent fixed assets from the Financial Statements and the same will be taken care of in the
next financial year.

INTERNAL AUDITORS:

M/s. Ashvin K. Yagnik & Co., Chartered Accountants & M/s. Hitesh Agrawal & Co., Chartered
Accountants were appointed as internal auditors of the Corporation for the year 2014-15.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

The Company has obtained Secretarial Audit Report from M/s Manoj Hurkat & Associates, Practicing
Company Secretaries for the year 2014-15.

As regards to observations made by the Secretarial Auditors in their Secretarial Audit Report, the
Board has to state as follows:

The Board would like to inform you that your Company had vide Letter No. SEC/ID/2016-17/3433
dated 27th June, 2016 sent resumes of few individuals to the Government of Gujarat for appointment
as Independent Directors. Reminder letter no SEC/ID/2016-17/4698 dated 7th September, 2016
was also sent for the same matter. Necessary orders/directions are awaited from the Government of
Gujarat. Upon appointment of Independent Directors by the Government of Gujarat, the Company
shall be fully compliant with the provisions of the constitution of the Board of Directors. Thereafter,
the Company shall also reconstitute the Audit Committee by inducting Independent Directors and
shall also constitute the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in due compliance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Necessary steps with regards to compliance of Corporate
Social Responsibility provisions are being taken. The Company will also take necessary steps to
make necessary appointments of Key Managerial Personnel including Company Secretary.

As you are aware, the Company had convened Annual General Meeting on 30th September, 2014
which was adjourned in respect of agenda matter pertaining to approval of financial statements as
the Statutory Auditors were in the process of conducting the audit. The Company has now duly
obtained the Audited Statement of accounts and Auditor’s Report (together with the comments of the
C&AG) and the same will be placed before you at the ensuing Adjourned 45th Annual General
Meeting.

The Company is in the process of regularizing the filing of requisite forms/returns in respect of
matters/events pertaining to the financial year for which the Company was required to do filing.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The details forming part of the extract of annual return in Form No. MGT-9 for the F.Y. 2014-15 is
enclosed herewith as a separate Annexure.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

The loan made by the Corporation is exceeding the limits prescribed u/s 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 and no guarantee or security is provided by the Corporation.



14.

15.
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Details of Loan covered u/s 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial
Statements (Please refer Note 14.1 to the standalone Balance Sheet)

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the F.Y. 2014-15 the Corporation has not entered into any contracts or arrangements with
related parties. Therefore, the provisions of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 were not attracted.

Further, there are no materially significant related party transactions during the year under review
made by the Corporation with promoters, Directors or other designated persons which have a potential
conflict with the interest of the company at large.

The company has not formed CSR committee.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, EXPORT & FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNING AND OUTGO:

A Statement giving details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, exports and foreign
exchange earnings and outgo in accordance with the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the
Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 is annexed.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record the valuable contribution and efforts made by
the employees. Your Directors express their gratitude to the Government of India and Government of
Gujarat, Bankers, Financial Institutions, Suppliers, Dealers, Purchasers, Statutory Auditors, Internal
Auditors, Solicitors and other consultants who have extended their support and co-operation to the
Corporation.

Your Directors also express their sincere thanks and appreciation to the Executives of the Corporation.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

Place : Gandhinagar

Date : 28-12-2016 Managing Director Director



ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Particulars required under the Companies (Disclosure of particulars in the Report of Board of
Director ) Rules 1988

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY :
(a) Energy Conservation measures taken :
Manufacturing Process standardised to reduce electricity consumption
(b)  Additional investment and proposal for reduction of consumption of energy.
NIL
(c) Impact of the above :
NA
(d) Total Energy Consumption and Energy Consumption per unit of production
NIL
B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION :
None.
C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO:
Total Foreign exchange used and earned.
(Rs.in Lacs)
2014-15 2013-14
(i)  CIF Value of imports - -
(i)  Expenditure in foreign currency - -

(i)  Foreign Exchange earned - -



COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6) (B) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
ACCOUNTS OF GUJARAT AGRO INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LTD.,

AHMEDABAD

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MATCH 2015

The preparation of financial statements of Gujarat Agro Industries Corporation Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2015 in accordance with financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the management of
the Company. The Statutory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General
of India under Section 139 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 is responsible for expressing
opinion on these financial statements under Section 143 (10) of the Companies Act,
2013 based on independent audit in accordance with the Auditing and Assurance
Standards prescribed by their professional body, the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 28
December, 2015.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India have conducted the a
supplementary audit under Section 143 (6) (B) of the Companies Act, 2013 of the financial
statements of Gujarat Agro Industries Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 March
2015. On the basis of my audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which
would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to Statutory Auditors’ Report under
Section 143 (6) (B) of the Companies Act, 2013.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Place : Ahmedabad (Y. N. Thakre)
Dated : 09-05-2016 Accountant General
(E & RSA), Gujarat




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Gujarat Agro Industries Corporation Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Gujarat Agro Industries Corporation Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2015, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accountings
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the
Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the
operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified audit opinion on the financial statements.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

(a) The balances of Trade receivables, Trade Payables, Long-term Borrowings, Deposit receivable /
payables, Long-term Inter-Corporate Deposits and Other loans and advances are subject to
Confirmation and reconciliations as more particularly described in note no. 23.12 of the financial
statement and hence impact, if any, of unreconciled amounts on the Statement of Profit and Loss
and on respective accounts are unascertained.

(b)  The Company has not conducted the test of impairment of assets and compiled the relevant information
as stated in note no. 8.4 of the financial statements. Consequently, it has not adjusted the carrying
value of the assets, if required, amount being unascertained. This constitutes a departure from
Accounting Standard-28 “Impairment of Assets”, as a consequence of which the impact, if any, on
the Carrying amount of Fixed Assets and Profit could not be ascertained.

(c) The Company has not recognized Deferred Tax Liabilities/Assets in the financial statements as stated
in note no. 23.8 of the financial statements. This constitutes a departure from Accounting Standard
22 *Accounting for taxes on income”, as a consequence of which the impact, if any, on the financial
statements could not be ascertained.

(d) The Company has identified fixed assets which are not in existence and obsolete amounting to Rs.
22,85,387 as stated in note no. 8.3 of the financial statements. However the Company has not
eliminated such fixed assets from the books of account. This constitutes a departure from Accounting
Standard 10 “Accounting for fixed assets” as a consequence of which the impact, if any, on the
Carrying amount of Fixed Assets and Statement of Profit and Loss could not be ascertained.

The cumulative impact of the matters narrated and described at points (a) to (d) above on the Financial
Statements for the year under review cannot be ascertained.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for
the effects of the matter described in basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph ,the aforesaid financial statements
give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31
March, 2015, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of matters

We draw attention to Note no. 5.1 of the financial statements which describes that the Company has not
collected information from the Suppliers covered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements



1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section143 of the Act, we give in the “ Annexure
A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2.  Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d.  Except for the effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified opinion paragraph, in
our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2015 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st
March, 2015 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

f. The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above.

g. Withrespect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements (Refer Note no 23.1) to the financial statements).

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

3. As required by Section 143(5) of the Act, we have considered the direction and sub- directions
issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India. We give our report in the attached “ Annexure
B *“
For. C.R. SHAREDALAL & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS,
(Registration No.109943W)
PLACE: AHMEDABAD
DATE :28-12-2015
(J.K. Patel)
PARTNER
Membership No.047136



Annexure ‘A’ to Independent Auditors’ Report

[Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”

of our

1. (a)

report of even date]

The Company has maintained fixed assets register, however the same is not complete and
comprehensive in respect of quantitative details and specific identification of fixed assets.

(b) On the basis of information and explanation given to us, majority of Fixed Assets have been

2. (a)

physically verified by the management during the year under review. In our opinion, frequency
of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the operation of the Company.
However, in view of non maintenance of quantitative details in fixed assets register discrepancies,
if any, could not be ascertained.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management through a firm of Chartered
Accountants during the year. In our opinion the frequency of such verification is reasonable.

(b) In our opinion, the procedures for the physical verification of inventory followed by the

(c)

management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the
nature of its business.

The Company has maintained proper records of inventory. As explained to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to the book record.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Consequently, requirements of clause (iii) (a) and (iii) (b) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are adequate
internal control systems commensurate with the size of the Company and nature of its business, for
the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no continuing failure to correct
major weaknesses in internal control systems.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

According to the information and explanation given to us the Company is not required to maintain
cost records in terms of sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the books of account, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Value Added
Tax, Wealth Tax, Custom duty, Excise duty, Service Tax, Cess and any other dues whichever
is applicable during the year with the appropriate authorities and no undisputed dues payable
in respect of outstanding statutory dues were in arrears as at 31t March, 2015 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.



According to the information and explanations given to us as at 31t March,2015 there are no
amounts in respect of sales tax/ income tax/ custom duty/ wealth tax/ excise duty/ service tax/
cess that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute
except as stated below :

Particulars Financial year which | Forum where dispute is pending Amount

matter pertains (Rs.)
Value Added Tax | 1990-91 and 1991-92 Commercial Tax appellate Tribunal 2,72,000
Income Tax 2004-05 Hon’ble Gujarat High Court 93,56,000
Income Tax 1983-84 Income Tax appellate Tribunal 1,30,000

10.

11.

12.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no amounts which were
required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

The Company does not have any accumulated losses at the end of the financial year. The Company
has not incurred cash losses during the current financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

The Company has not taken any loans from banks and financial institutions hence the requirements
of clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
given any guarantee for loan taken by others from banks and financial institutions.

The Company has not obtained any term loans during the year, hence the requirements of clause
(xi) of paragraph 3 of the Order regarding application of loan for the purpose for which they have
been obtained does not arise.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud
on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

For, C.R. SHAREDALAL & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS,
(Registration No.109943W)

PLACE: AHMEDABAD
DATE :28-12-2015

(J.K. Patel)
PARTNER
Membership No.047136



Annexure: ‘B’

Audit Report of Gujarat Agro Industries Corporation Limited for the year 2014-15 pursuant to
directions under section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Directions for the year 2014-15

Sr. Directions Action taken Impact on the
No. Accounts and
Financial
Statements of
the Company
1 If the company is selected for | As informed to us, the company has | No Impact
disinvestment , a complete status | not been selected for disinvestment
report in terms of valuation of assets | during the year and thus the point is
(including intangible assets and land) | not applicable.
and liabilities (including committed
and general reserves) may be
examined including the mode and
present stage of disinvestment
process.
2 Please report whether there are any | As per information and Explanation | No Impact
cases of waiver/write off of debts / | given by Company that no such waiver
loan/ interest etc., if yes, the reasons | has been made and no such instances
there fore and the amount involved. | found during the course of audit.
3 Whether proper records are | The Company maintains properrecord | No Impact
maintained for inventories lying with | of inventories lying with third parties.
third parties & assets received as gift | The Company has not received any gift
from Govt. or other authorities from Govt. or other authorities during
the year under review.
4 A report on age-wise analysis of | As per information and explanation | No Impact
pending legal / arbitration cases | given to us the Company have 218
including the reasons of pendency | pending legal/arbitration cases. The
and existence/effectiveness of a | age-wise classification obtained from
monitoring mechanism for | the management is as under :More
expenditure on all legal cases( | than 3 years: 218 cases.The main
foreign and local) may be given. reasons for the pendency are legal
complexities involved in pursuance of
cases and time taken by the courts in
disposal of matters. There are no
specific norms laid down for legal
expenses (Foreign & Local) incurred/
to be incurred. The Company has
adequate system for monitoring
Expenditure on all legal foreign and
local cases.




Sub-Directions under section 143(5) of Companies Act , 2013 for the year 2014-15

Sr. Directions Action taken Impact on the

No. Accounts and
Financial

Statements of

the Company

A General

1. Whether the land owned by the| As explained to us, no such | No Impact
Company is encroached, under litigation, | instances of encroachment of
not put to use or declared surplus. Details | freehold land and freehold land
may be provided. under litigation are reported during

the year. However, freehold land not
put to use or declared surplus by
the management as on 31 March,
2015 is as per Annexure 1.

2. Whether Physical Verification and | Not Applicable Not Applicable
valuation of standing crops/trees was
done at the end of the Financial Year in
accordance with the standard industry
practices?

3. Whether the stock of seeds packing/ | Not Applicable Not Applicable
certification material and other items has
been taken on the basis of stock records
after adjustment of shortage/excess
found on physical verification and
whether due consideration has been
given for deterioration in the quantity of
old stocks which may result into over
valuation of stock?

4, Whether all the agriculture produces | According to the explanation | No Impact
procured are properly stored and | provided to us, all products are
adequately insured. If any insurance | properly stored and adequately
claims are rejected, the details may be | insured. No instances of rejection
reported. of insurance claims have been

observed.

5. Whether the Company has an effective | According to the information | No Impact
mechanism for disbursement of loans/ | provided to us the disbursement of
subsidies/agro inputs and agriculture | subsidies to beneficiaries are as per
mechanism to beneficiaries and recovery | the directions given by the
thereof (loans) along with interest, if any, [ Government.
from beneficiaries?

6. That grants/subsidies received for | Yes No Impact
implementing various schemes are
accounted for as per the accounting
standards and utilized for intended
purposes.




Directions

Action taken

Impact on the
Accounts and
Financial
Statements of
the Company

Whether the cost incurred on abandoned
projects has been written off?

As per the explanation given to us,
no such abandoned projects are
reported during the year.

Not Applicable

Agriculture Procurement

Examine and report the cases of levy of
penalty for mismatch of stock of food
grains with cash credit limit availed.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Examine and report the system for timely
lodging of claims (covering all cost
incidentals) in respect of delivery of food
grains against Central and State
Scheme.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Examine and report on the deficiencies
in the system for assessing the health of
stock and for valuation of damaged food
grains.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Examine and report the system of
reconciliation of amount recoverable/
payable, in respect of gunny bales, with
millers and other procuring agencies.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Examine the system of check the
authenticity of claims shown as
recoverable from FCl/State Govt.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Agro Based Industries

Report the cases of diversion of grants/
subsidies received from Central/State
Government or their agencies for
performing certain activities.

No such instances are observed
during the year under audit.

Not Applicable

Cases of wrong accounting of interest
earned on account of non utilization of
amount received for certain projects/
schemes may be reported.

No such instances are observed
during the year under audit.

Not Applicable

Examine pricing policy framed by the
Company to ensure that all cost
components are covered.

There is no documented policy for
pricing. However as explained to us,
the practice of the company for

No Impact




Sr. Directions Action taken Impact on the
No. Accounts and
Financial
Statements of
the Company
deciding price of the product is by | No Impact
calculating the projected cost which
is considered on the basis of
available information about various
elements of cost such as raw
material, labour overheads, etc.
After calculating the projected cost,
profit margin is added to the
projected cost and final selling price
is derived.
A. Report on the extent of utilization of plant | According to information and
& machinery and its obsolescence, if | explanation given to us, plant and
applicable. machinery are utilized to the extent
of less than 50% of installed capacity
Annexure -1
Sr. Place/ Location of Taluka District Area of Land | Survey | Status of Type Of Land
No. Land No. Land
1 Tragad Ahmedabad Ahmedabad | 2000Sq.mt. 102 Open Land | Non Agriculture
2 Bavla Bavla Ahmedabad | 17701 sq.mt. 1019 Open Land | Non Agriculture
3 Bavla Bavla Ahmedabad | 22460 sq.mt. 1021 Open Land | Non Agriculture
4 Beharampura Ahmedabad Ahmedabad | 20234 Sq. mt. | 101/p Open Land | Non Agriculture
Shahwadi 38/p
5 Chikali (Samroli) Chikhali Navsari 3290 807/p Open Land | Non Agriculture
6 Bavla Bavla Ahmedabad | 32881 Sq.mt. 1020 Open Land | Non Agriculture

PLACE: AHMEDABAD

DATE

: 28-12-2015

For, C.R. SHAREDALAL & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS,
(Registration No.109943W)

(J.K. Patel)
PARTNER
Membership No.047136



NOTE - - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Corporate Information

The Company is a Government Company incorporated under the Companies Act 1956 with a primary
objective of promoting agricultural activities and fosters development of agro industries in State of
Gujarat. Significant line of activities of the Company includes manufacturing of pesticides and dealing
with fertilizers. Moreover the Company acts as a facilitators and nodal agency for various agricultural
as well as non-agricultural schemes of Government of Gujarat and Government of India. The Company
has extended its operations in State of Gujarat through 18 Branch Centers at various District / Taluka
palces and around 1200 affiliated Retail Outlets. Corporate Identification Number (CIN) of the Company
is U91110GJ1969SGC001582.

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements :

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis in
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principal (GAAP), and comply with the Companies
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“ the Act”) read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. In applying the accounting policies, consideration
has been given to Prudence, Substance over Form and Materiality.

Use of estimates :

The preparation of financial statements requires the management of the company to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to the
contingent liability as at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of income and
expenses like useful lives of fixed assets, provision for taxation and provision of employee benefits,
etc., during the year. Management believes the estimates used in the preparation of the financial
statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results may vary from these estimates. The difference
between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known
or materialized.

Cash and Cash Equivalents :

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement include cash on hand, Cheques &
drafts on hand and balances with banks in current account and fixed deposits account (With original
maturity of 3 months or less).

Cash Flow Statement :

The Cash Flow statement has been prepared as per the indirect method set out in AS-3 as specified
under section 133 of the Companies Act,2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rule,2014.The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated based on the available information.

Tangible Fixed Assets :

Fixed assets are carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of fixed assets
includes purchase price, non refundable duties and taxes, interest on borrowings attributable to
acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use and other
incidental expenses incurred up to that date.



10.

Machinery spares which can be used only in connection with an item of fixed asset and whose use is
expected to be irregular are capitalised and depreciated over the useful life of the principal item of
the relevant assets.

Subsequent expenditure relating to fixed assets is capitalised only if such expenditure results in an
increase in the future benefits from such asset beyond its previously assessed standard of
performance.

Fixed assets retired from active use and held for sale are stated at the lower of their net book value
and net realisable value and are disclosed separately in the Balance Sheet under Other Current
Assets.

Capital Work-in-Progress :

Projects under which assets are not ready for their intended use and other capital work-in-progress
are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable interest and
shown under the head Capital Work-in-Progress.

Intangible Assets :

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. The cost of an intangible asset
comprises its purchase price, including any import duties and other taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities), and any directly attributable expenditure on
making the asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates. Subsequent
expenditure on an intangible asset after its purchase / completion is recognised as an expense when
incurred unless it is probable that such expenditure will enable the asset to generate future economic
benefits in excess of its originally assessed standards of performance and such expenditure can be
measured and attributed to the asset reliably, in which case such expenditure is added to the cost of
the asset.

Investments :

(1) Investments that are readily realizable and are intended to be held for not more than one
year from the date on which investments are made, are classified as current Investments. All
other investments are classified as long term investments.

(2) Non-Current investments are stated individually at cost less provision for diminution other than
temporary, in the value of such investments.

(3) Current investments are stated individually, at the lower of cost and fair value.
(4) The cost of investments includes acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.
Inventories :

Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase and other cost incurred in bringing them to their
respective present location and condition.

Inventories are valued as under:
(1) Raw Material — At cost or net realizable value whichever is lower on FIFO basis.

(2) Finished Goods — At the aggregate of weighted average material cost and direct applicable
standard overheads or net realizable value whichever is lower.
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12.

13.

14.

(3) Trading Goods — At cost or net realizable value whichever is lower on FIFO basis.

(4) Stores, Spares and Packing Material - At cost or net realizable value whichever is lower on
FIFO basis.

Work-in-progress includes appropriate proportion of overheads and excise duty wherever applicable.
Trade Receivables & Advances :

Trade Receivables and Advances are stated at expected realizable value. Expected realizable value
is determined by the management on the basis of creditworthiness and past experiences. Provisions
for trade receivables and advances outstanding for a period of more than 3 years are made considering
it to be reasonably unexpected for realisation.

Revenue Recognition :
a) Sale of goods :

Sales are recognised, net of returns, trade discounts, quantity discounts and discount on
fertilizers on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer, which generally
coincides with the delivery of goods to customers. Sales include excise duty but exclude value
added tax.

b) Income from services :

Revenues from contracts priced on a time and material basis are recognised when services
are rendered and related costs are incurred.

c) Other Income:

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and rate applicable and accounted on accrual basis. Dividend income is accounted
for when the right to receive is established.

Government Grants and Subsidies:

Government grant is recognized where there is a reasonable assurance that the conditions attached
to them will be complied with.

Government grant received against the development of specific infrastructure project is credited to
the respective Project Grant Account under Reserve and surplus. The depreciation charged on the
basis of useful life of the created assets is also charged to the specific grant account by reducing the
value of assets in fixed assets block.

Subsidy received in cases the Corporation is acting as a Nodal Agency are accounted for as liabilities
as and when received and any amount paid to the beneficiaries against such subsidy are debited to
respective subsidy account. In case subsidies are paid in advance same are classified as receivable
in financial statements.

Expenses :

Material known liabilities are provided for on the basis of available information/estimates. All major
items of expenses are accounted for on accrual/pro-rata basis and necessary provisions for the
same are made.
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Depreciation and Amortisation :

Tangible Assets

Depreciation has been provided on straight line method on the basis of estimated useful life
of assets as prescribed in schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation on all fixed assets of the Corporation covering plant and machinery, vehicles,
office equipments, furniture and fixtures and all other assets are provided in books up to
95% of the cost of the assets except in case where an asset does not retain realisable
value.

Depreciation on addition/disposal to fixed assets are provided on pro-rata basis on number
of days for which the asset is used by the company.

Assets costing upto Rs. 5,000/- are depreciated fully in the year of purchase.

Depreciation in relation to Fixed Assets acquired out of specific grant is charged to respective
grants in the Balance Sheet.

Intangible Assets

Computer software is amortised over a period of 10 years

Employee Benefits :

Employee benefits include provident fund, superannuation fund, gratuity fund, compensated absences,
long service awards and post-employment medical benefits, if any.

a)

b)

Defined Contribution Plans :

The Company’s contribution to provident fund and superannuation fund are considered as
defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense to the Statement of Profit and Loss,
as they fall due based on the amount of contribution required to be made.

Defined Benefit Plans :

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund, Leave salary encashment and post-
Employment medical benefits, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected
Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance Sheet date.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which they occur. Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits
are already vested and otherwise is amortised on a straight-line basis over the average period
until the benefits become vested. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance
Sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised
past service cost, as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this
calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and
reductions in future contributions to the schemes.

Short-term employee benefits :

Short-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in
the Statement of profit and loss for the year in which the related service is rendered.
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19.

20.

21.

d) Long-term employee benefits :

Post employment and other long term employee benefits are recognized as expense in the
Statement of profit and loss for the year in which employees have rendered services. The
company also provides for post employment benefits in form of Gratuity and Leave encashment.
Provision for such benefits is made in books of accounts on the basis of valuation as at the
balance sheet date, made by independent actuaries. Actuarial gains / losses are recognised in
full in the statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing Costs :

Borrowing costs includes interest and amortisation of ancillary costs incurred. Costs in connection
with the borrowing of funds to the extent not directly related to the acquisition of qualifying assets are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the loan. Borrowing costs, allocated to
and utilised for qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of activities relating
to construction / development of the qualifying asset upto the date of capitalisation of such asset is
added to the cost of the assets. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active development activity on the
qualifying assets is interrupted.

Leases :

Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially
vest with the lessor are recognised as operating leases. Lease rentals under operating leases are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis.

Taxes on Income :

Provision for Current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the provisions
of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Earnings per Share :

For the purpose of calculating earnings per share the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity share holder divided by the weighted average number of shares outstanding at the end of the
year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity share holder and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

The weighted average number is arrived at after taking into consideration the bonus issue, right
issue, buyback etc. if any during the year.

Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets :

Provisions are recognized when there is present obligation as a result of past events that probably
require an outflow of resources and reliable estimates can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is possible obligation or a present obligation
that may but probably will not require an outflow of resources. The company does not recognize the
contingent liability but disclose the same in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent asset
neither recognize nor disclosed in the financial statement.
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Segment Reporting :

The Corporation’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the
nature of products and services provided. Majority of the Corporation’s products are sold within India
and hence geographical segment is not identified.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the
Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been
identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.

Inter-segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily determined
based on market / fair value factors.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are not
allocable to segments on reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated revenue / expenses
/ assets / liabilities”.

Service Tax Input Credit :

Service tax input credit is accounted for in the books in the period in which the underlying service
received is accounted and when there is no uncertainty in availing / utilizing the credits.

Events occurring after the Balance Sheet Date :

Material adjusting events (that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the balance sheet date)
occurring after the balance sheet date are recognized in the financial statements. Non adjusting
events (that are indicative of conditions that arose subsequent to the balance sheet date) occurring
after the balance sheet date that represent material change and commitment affecting the financial
position are disclosed in the reports of the Board of Directors.



: GUJARAT AGRO INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LTD. .

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2015
Amount in Rs.

PARTICULARS NOTE AS AT 31ST AS AT 31ST
NO MARCH 2015 MARCH 2014
A EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholders’ Funds
(a) Share Capital 1 80,825,000 80,825,000
(b) Reserves and Surplus 2 1,020,238,844 865,454,980
1,101,063,844 946,279,980
2 Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-Term Borrowings 3 200,000,000 200,000,000
(b) Long-Term Provisions 4 4,408,995 -
204,408,995 200,000,000
3 Current liabilities
(a) Trade Payables 5 390,772,640 218,000,685
(b) Other Current Liabilities 6 7,026,166,203 1,873,846,436
(c) Short-term Provisions 7 13,015,089 24,721,158
7,429,953,932 2,116,568,278
TOTAL 8,735,426,771 3,262,848,258
B ASSETS
1 Non-Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets 8
(i) Tangible Assets 366,263,376 223,152,371
(i) Intangible Assets 160,703 2,172,338
(iii) Capital Work-in-progress 96,582,507 198,013,458
463,006,586 423,338,167
(b) Non-Current Investments 9 12,121,010 12,121,010
(c) Long-Term Loans and Advances 10 238,187,011 433,251,521
(d) Other non-current assets 11 22,237,354 72,576,478
272,545,375 517,949,009
2 Current Assets
(a) Inventories 12 429,934,180 108,771,117
(b) Trade Receivables 13 198,009,712 169,221,483
(c) Cash and Bank Balances 14 4,512,370,397 414,090,000
(d) Short-term Loans and Advances 15 2,687,815,344 1,5628,104,040
(e) Other Current Assets 16 171,745,177 101,374,441
7,999,874,810 2,321,561,082
TOTAL 8,735,426,771 3,262,848,258
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1
The accompanying notes 1 to 23 are integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For C R Sharedalal & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 109943W

J.K.Patel Chairman

Partner

M. No.: 047136

Place : AHMEDABAD

Date : Date :
' ANNUAL REPORT-14-15

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Managing Director

Place : GANDHINAGAR




STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2015

Amount in Rs.

PARTICULARS NOTE AS AT 31ST AS AT 31ST
NO MARCH 2015 MARCH 2014
INCOME
1 Gross Revenue from Operations 17 3,154,282,854 3,686,839,862
Less: Excise Duty 17 (11,880,227) (10,120,877)
Net Revenue from Operations 3,142,402,627 3,676,718,985
2 Other Income 18 270,036,605 217,078,391
3 TOTAL REVENUE [A] 3412439232 3,893,797,376
4 EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 19A 64,884,708 54,236,630
Purchases of Stock-in-trade 19B 3,286,352,722 3,010,141,420
Changes in inventories of Finished Goods 19C (329,194,498) 431,489,180
Work-in-progress and Stock-in-trade
Employee Benefits Expense 20 117,005,246 105,966,365
Finance Costs 21 9,482,543 9,700,764
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 8 4,710,024 1,552,907
Other Expenses 22 74,121,324 70,295,119
TOTAL EXPENSES [B] 3227362069 3,683,382,385
5 Profit before Tax [A-B] 185,077,163 210,414,991
6 Exceptional ltems (Refer Note no. 23.17) 2024482 0
7 Profit Before Tax 183,052,681 210,414,991
8 TAX EXPENSES
Current Tax 65,500,000 72,155,000
Net current tax expense 65500000 72,155,000
9 Profit for the year 117,552,681 138,259,991
10 Earning per share of face value of Rs. 100 each
Basic and Diluted in Rs. 145.44 171.06
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 -117005245.8 -105966365

The accompanying notes 1 to 23 are integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For C R Sharedalal & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 109943W

J.K.Patel
Partner
M. No.: 047136

Chairman

Place : AHMEDABAD
Date : Date :

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Managing Director

Place : GANDHINAGAR



CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2015
Amount in Rs.

PARTICULARS FOR THE YEAR ENDED FOR THE YEAR ENDED
ON 31st MARCH 2015 ON 31st MARCH 2014

Cash flow from Operating Activities

Net Profit before Taxes 183,052,681 138,259,991

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and Amortisation 4,710,024 1,552,907

(Profit) / loss on Sale / Write off of Assets - (997)

Finance Costs 9,482,543 9,700,764

Interest Income (222,219,096) (175,951,692)

Dividend income (83,400) -

Rental Income from Operating Leases (5,751,510) (4,471,635)

Liabilities / Provisions no longer

required written back (1,254,649) (460,669)

Computer Software W/off 2,024,482 -

Provision for Doubtful Trade and Other

Receivables Loans and Advances 778,774

Sundry Credit balances written back (175,225) (2,775)

Expenses Payable 9,786,145 (203,480,686) 10,682,108 | (158,173,215)

Operating Profit / (Loss) before working

capital changes (20,428,005) (19,913,224)

Changes in working capital:

Adj. for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:

Inventories (321,163,063) 424,824,595

Trade Receivables (27,533,579) (25,165,761)

Short-Term Loans and Advances (1,159,711,304) (618,980,999)

Long-Term Loans and Advances 170,343,352 (201,452,167)

Other Current Assets (29,953,851) (35,961,487)

Other Non-Current Assets 50,339,124 | (1,317,679,321) | (72,576,478) | (529,312,298)

Adj. for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities

Trade Payables 172,771,955 (378,917,685)

Other Current Liabilities 5,121,695,504 527671473.4

Short-Term Provisions 6,128,404 18,858,008

Long-Term Provisions 4,408,995 5,305,004,859 (8,606,511) 159,005,285

Cash generated from Operations 3,966,897,533 (390,220,237)

Direct Taxes paid (net of refunds) (58,613,315) (53,284,180)

Net Cash Flow from / (used in) O

perating Activities (A) 3,908,284,218 (443,504,417)
- ANNUAL REPORT-14-15 ¥ 27 |



: GUJARAT AGRO INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LTD. .

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2015
Amount in Rs.

PARTICULARS FOR THE YEAR ENDED FOR THE YEAR ENDED
ON 31st MARCH 2015 ON 31st MARCH 2014
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Capital expenditure on fixed assets including (65,486,087) (83,391,172)
capital advances
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets - 2,500
Capital Grant Recd. for Fixed Asset 66,012,870 82,044,287
Interest received 133,881,683 162,186,139
Dividend received 83,400 -
Rental income from operating leases 5,751,510 140,243,376 4,471,635 ' 165,313,389
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) 140,243,376 165,313,389
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Net increase / (decrease) in Working Capital borrowings 29235762.75
Proposed Dividend & tax thereon 11314818.75 9698794
Finance Cost -9482543.29 1832275.459 9700764 48635320.75
Net Cash Flow from / (used in) Financing Activities (C) 1,832,275 48,635,321
Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and Cash 4,050,359,869 (239,254,502)
Equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 371,865,000 611,119,503
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 4,422 224,869 371,865,000
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents
with the Balance Sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
year comprised of : 371,865,000
Cash on hand 354,371 765,393
Cheques and Drafts on hand 3,526,760,970 14,196,210
Balances with Banks
in Current Accounts 761,804,528 286,148,397 '
in Deposit Accounts 133,305,000 4,422,224 ,869 70,755,000 371,865,000
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 0
The accompanying notes 1 to 23 are integral part of financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For C R Sharedalal & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 109943W
J.K.Patel Chairman Managing Director
Partner
M. No.: 047136
Place : AHMEDABAD Place : GANDHINAGAR
Date : Date :
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2015

1 SHARE CAPITAL

Amount in Rs.

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST MARCH 2015 AS AT 31ST MARCH 2014
Number of Rs. Number of Rs.
shares shares
(@) Authorised
EQUITY SHARES OF Rs. 100/- EACH 2,000,000 200,000,000 2,000,000 200,000,000
(b) Issued, subscried and fully paid up
EQUITY SHARES OF Rs. 100/- EACH 808,250 80,825,000 808,250 80,825,000
TOTAL 808,250 80,825,000 808,250 80,825,000

1.1 Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST MARCH 2015 AS AT 31ST MARCH 2014
Number of Rs. Number of Rs.
shares shares
At the beginning of the year 808250 80825000 808250 80825000
Issued during the year 0 0 0 0
Outstanding at the end of the year 808250 80825000 808250 80825000

1.2 The details of shareholders holding more than 5% share in the company

Name of shareholder As at 31st March 2015 As at 31st March 2014
No. of shares % held | No. of shares % held
Equity Share of Rs.100/- each fully paid
Governor of Gujarat 808250 100.00% 808250 100.00%
(Including nominees)
TOTAL 808250 1 808250 1

1.3 Terms/rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity share having a par value or Rs.100/- per share. Each holder of
equity share is entitled for one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets
of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number
of equity shares held by the shareholders



2 Reserves and surplus
Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST AS AT 31ST
MARCH 2015 | MARCH 2014
Capital Reserves (Refer note no 2.1 below)
Opening Balance 479792674.2 407263627
Add : Additions during the year 66012870.19 82044287
Less : Utilised / Transferred during the year -19083162.13 -9515240
[A] 526722382.3 479792674
Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance 385662305.7 257101109
Add : Net Profit for the year 117552681.1 138259991
Less : Appropriations for
Proposed Equity Dividend
(Rs.10 per share (P.Y. Rs. 10 per Share)) -8082500 -8082500
Tax on Equity Dividend -1616024.749 -1616294
[B] 493516462.1 385662306
TOTAL [A]+[B] 1020238844 865454980
2.1 Capital reserve Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST AS AT 31ST
MARCH 2015 | MARCH 2014
(a) Capital reserve 70,570,436 70,570,436
(b) Capital Grant for Agro Service Centre 345,000 345,000
(c) Capital Reserve on Amalgamation 94,416 94,416
(d) Capital Grant from Govt. for Cold Storage at Deesa 386,008 386,008
(e) Capital Grant for Fixed Assets
Opening balance 408,396,815 335,867,768
Add: Additions during the year 66,012,870 82,044,287
Less: Depreciation / Amortisation during the year 19,083,162 9,515,240
455,326,523 408,396,815
TOTAL 526,722,382 479,792,674




Note 2.1 Reserves and surplus
Amount in Rs.

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST AS AT 31ST
MARCH 2015 MARCH 2014

RESERVES AND SURPLUS
(1)  CAPITAL RESERVE

[Including amounts received under Central/State Govt.]

Grant for purchase of specific assets(net of depreciation)]
(i) Capital Reserve: As per last Balancesheet 70,570,436 70,570,436
(i) Capital Grant for A.S.C 345,000 345,000
(i) Capital Reserve on Amalgmation 94,416 94,416
(iv)  Capital Grant from Govt.C.S.Deesa 386,008 386,008
(v)  Capital Grant for Onion Meda 100,474 104,549

Less: Deduction on account of depreciation 100,474 4,075 100,474
(vij  Capital Grant for Computers-AEZ 85,816 256,806

Less: Deduction on account of depreciation 48,333 37,482 170,990 85,816
(vi)  Capital Grant for Furniture-Agri &Horti.Export 155,326 170,587

Less: Deduction on account of depreciation 32,715 122,611 15,261 155,326
(vii)  Capital Grant for Irradiation Plant-Bavla 148,057,482 73,055,363

Add: During the year 29,357,742 75,037,108

Less: Deduction on account of depreciation 6,607,277 170,807,946 34,989 |148,057,482
(ix)  Capital Grant for Tomato Cluster Plant-Bavla 912,410 935,368

Less: Deduction on account of depreciation 556,071 356,339 22,958 912,410
(x)  Capital Grant for Banana Pack House 55,227,435 57,878,830

Less: Deduction on account of depreciation 2,920,971 52,306,464 2,651,395 | 55,227,435
(xi)  Capital Grant for Intigrated Pack House-Naroda 53,991,089 56,707,607

Less: Deduction on account of depreciation 4,125,012 49,866,077 2,716,518 | 53,991,089
(xii)  Capital Grant for Centre for Perishable Cargo-Naroda 43,235,173 45,326,933

Less: Deduction on account of depreciation 2,861,269 40,373,904 2,091,760 | 43,235,173
(xiii)  Capital Grant for Cold Storage-Mahuva 41,551,728 43,091,186

Less: Deduction on account of depreciation 1,273,854 40,277,874 1,539,458 | 41,551,728
(xiv)  Capital Grant for Modern Potato Cold Storage - Deesa 55,335,512 53,519,384

Add: During the year ,206,779 61,542,291 1,816,128 | 55,335,512
(xv)  Capital Grant for Poha Project 2,289,001 274,200

Add: During the year 30,448,349 32,737,350 2,014,801 | 2,289,001
(xvi)  Capital Grant for Liquid Bio-Fertilisers Unit - Naroda 7,311,151 4,359,141

Add: During the year 3,176,250

Less: Deduction on account of depreciation 527,302 6,783,849 224,240 | 7,311,151
(xvii) Capital Grant for Computer (Agri & Hort) 64,859 91,679

Less: Deduction on account of depreciation 9,055 55,804 26,820 64,859
(xviii) Capital Grant for Computer ( NMFP ) 79,360 96,136

Less: Deduction on account of depreciation 20,829 58,531 16,776 79,360

TOTAL 526,722,382 479,792,674




Long-Term Borrowings

Amount in Rs.

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST AS AT 31ST
MARCH 2015 | MARCH 2014
Inter Corporate Deposits (Unsecured)
Gujarat Mineral Development Corporation 200,000,000 200,000,000
(Refer to Note No. 10.2)
TOTAL 200,000,000 200,000,000
4 Long-Term Provisions
Amount in Rs
PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST AS AT 31ST
MARCH 2015 | MARCH 2014
Provision for Employees Benefits
Provision for Gratuity 2,135,670 -
Provision for Leave Encashment 2,273,325 -
TOTAL 4,408,995
5 Trade Payables
Amount in Rs
PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST AS AT 31ST
MARCH 2015 | MARCH 2014
Trade Payables 390,772,640 218,000,685
TOTAL 390,772,640 218,000,685

The company has not collected / maintained information / records regarding particulars of entities
covered under Micro, Small & Medium Enterprise Development Act 2006. Therefore information as
per provisions of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 is not furnished.



Other Current Liabilities

Amount in Rs

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST AS AT 31ST
MARCH 2015 MARCH 2014
(a) Statutory remittances 4,414,460 5,117,951
(b) Contractually reimbursable expenses 329,059 463,458
(c) Trade / Security deposits (Unsecured)
- Agro Business Centres 235,595,317 243,056,442
- Others 101,680,852 82,026,848
(d) Advances from customers 55,290,330 64,954,477
(e) Subsidy Payable 6,562,821,385 1,409,234,224
(f) Payable to Employees (6" Pay Commission arrears) 9,758,129 9,758,129
(9) Supervision Charges Payable 10,960,999 13,815,911
(h) Expenses Payable 9,786,145 10,682,108
(i) Other Liabilities 24,214,709 25,038,093
(j) Proposed Dividend 8,082,500 8,082,500
(k) Tax on Proposed Dividend 3,232,319 1,616,294
TOTAL 7,026,166,203 1,873,846,436

Short-Term Provisions

Amount in Rs

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST AS AT 31ST

MARCH 2015 MARCH 2014
Provision for Income Tax (Net of Advance Tax) 6,886,685 24,721,158
Provision for Gratuity 6,128,404 0
TOTAL 13,015,089 24,721,158




GUJARAT AGRO INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LTD.
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8.1 FIXED ASSETS - NOTES

Amount in Rs.

PARTICULARS AS AT 131ST AS AT 31ST
MARCH 2015 MARCH 2014
Depreciation for the year 23,793,186 11,068,147
Less:
Amt.transfer to specific reserve account
Capital Grant for Computer-Agro Economic Zone (48,333) (170,990)
Capital Grant for furniture (32,715) (15,261)
Capital Grant for IPH Naroda (4,125,012) (2,716,518)
Capital Grant for Tomato Cluster Bavla (556,071) (22,958)
Capital Grant for Irradiation plant Bavla (6,607,277) (34,989)
Capital Grant for Banana Pack House (2,920,971) (2,651,395)
Capital Grant for Centre for Parishable Cargo (2,861,269) (2,091,760)
Capital Grant for Liquid Bio- fertilizer Naroda (527,302) (224,240)
Capital Grant for onion meda (100,474) (4,075)
Capital Grant for Computer (9,055) (26,820)
(Agriculture & Horticulture)
Capital Grant for Computer (20,829) (16,776)
(National Mission on Food Processing)
Capital Grant for Cold Storage (1,273,854) | (19,083,162) | (1,539,458) [(9,515,240)
NET BALANCE CHARGED TO THE
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS 4,710,024 1,552,907

8.2

8.3

8.4

Building Bore Road

The block of fixed assets as shown in Note No. 8 includes property situated at Agro Service Centre
- Gondal amounting to Rs. 4,86,000 under the head “Building Bore Road”. Some part of the said
property is still under the possession of Indian Oil Corporation (IOC).The corporation is claiming
rentals of Rs. 32,88,000 from IOC with regard to possession of this property & other property which
had been handed over to the corporation. The lease rentals will be accounted for as & when settled.

Physical verification of fixed assets

Majority of the fixed assets have been physically verified by the Management through a firm of
Chartered Accountants during the year. In the year 2011-12 Physical verification of fixed assets was
awarded to the external Chartered Accountants firm by the management and report of which was
received by the Management. Based on such report an Asset Management Committee was constituted
to examine the findings of the verification report and make recommendations to the Management to
take further actions. According to the report of external Chartered Accountants block of assets
comprised of certain assets not found to be in existence or considered obsolete. However the
management has not given effect in the financial statements to such findings for the reason of further
analysis to be made by the Asset Management Committee. Amount of assets considered to be not
in existence and obsolete is Rs. 22,85,387 for which appropriate provisions for dimunition in values
are require to be made. Committee has also been entrusted to update the Fixed Assets Register as
the register maintained by the Corporation does not adequately present all the facts and figures.

Impairment of Assets:

The Carrying value of Assets / Cash generating units as on March 31, 2015 are not reviewed for
impairment. Hence it is not possible to ascertain the effect of the same in the financial statements.



9 Non-Current Investments

Amount in Rs

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST AS AT 31ST
MARCH 2015 MARCH 2014

Unquoted Investments other than trade Investments
(i) 1200000 (P.Y. 1200000) Equity shares of

Gujarat Oleochem Ltd. (Rs.10/- each fully paid) 12,000,000 12,000,000
(i) 1045100 (P.Y. 1045100) Equity shares of

National Multi Commodity Exchange of India Ltd

(Rs.10/- each fully paid) 10,451,000 10,451,000
(iii) 166800 (P.Y. 166800) Equity shares of

Gujarat Green Revolution Co. Ltd.

(Rs.10/- each fully paid) 1,668,000 1,668,000
(iv) 120000 (P.Y. 120000) Equity shares of

Gujarat Leather Industries Ltd. (Rs.10/- each fully paid) 1,200,000 1,200,000
(v) 201 (P.Y. 201) Equity shares of Gujarat State

Cooperative Agricultural & Rural Development Bank Ltd.

(Rs.10/- each fully paid) 2,010 2,010

TOTAL 25,321,010 25,321,010

Less :

Provision for diminution in value of investment 13,200,000 13,200,000

TOTAL 12,121,010 12,121,010

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 25321010 25321010

Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments 13200000 13200000

9.1  Provision has been made for diminution in value amounting to Rs.1,32,00,000 of non-current
investments in respect of Gujarat Oleo Chem Ltd. Rs.1,20,00,000 and Gujarat Leather Industries

Ltd. Rs.12,00,000.




: GUJARAT AGRO INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LTD.

10 Long-Term Loans and Advances

Amount in Rs

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST AS AT 31ST
MARCH 2015 MARCH 2014
(a) Capital Advances - Unsecured considered good 6,287,353 6,287,353
(Refer Note No. 10.1)
(b) Inter Corporate Deposits (Unsecured)
Guijarat Dairy Development Corporation (Refer Note No.10.2) 200,000,000 200,000,000
Gujarat State Financial Services 0 200,000,000
200,000,000 400,000,000
(c) Security Deposits
Unsecured considered good 10,755,390 8,674,205
Doubtful 1,350,000 1,350,000
12,105,390 10,024,205
Less: Provision for doubtful deposits (1,350,000) (1,350,000)
10,755,390 8,674,205
(d) Loans and advances to employees
Secured considered good 4,860,152 5,815,459
Unsecured considered good 2,610 0
Doubtful 36,175 36,175
4,898,937 5,851,634
Less: Provision (36,175) (36,175)
4,862,762 5,815,459
(e) Balances with government authorities
Unsecured considered good
VAT Refund receivable 3,002,511 2,129,640
(f) Advance against goods
Unsecured considered good 907,354 0
Doubtful 1,238,207 1,220,748
2,145,561 1,220,748
Less: Provision (1,238,207) (1,220,748)
907,354 -
(g) Other loans and advances (Refer Note No. 10.3)
Doubtful 5,013,171 5,013,171
Less: Provision (5,013,171) (5,013,171)
(h) Other Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for
value to be received: (Refer Note No. 10.4)
Unsecured considered good 11,078,268 9,919,561
Doubtful 6,780,144 6,780,144
17,858,411 16,699,705
Less: Provision (6,780,144) (6,780,144)
11,078,268 9,919,561
(i) Advance Income Tax (Net of Provision for Taxation) 804791 -
() Income tax refund receivable (Refer Note No. 10.5) 16,545,169 16,481,889
Less: Provision for refund of income tax (16,056,586) (16,056,586)
488583 425,303
TOTAL 238,187,011 433,251,521
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10.2

10.2.1

10.2.2

10.2.3

10.2.4

Capital advances

Capital advances include the amount of Rs.2,87,000 being the amount paid to Ahmedabad Municipal
Corporation in the year 1972 for purchase of land for compost manure plant. The said land had
already been handed over to the corporation by Ahmedabad Municipal Corporation and is presently
under the possession of the corporation. Howerver the sale deed in respect of the same has not
yet been executed by the Ahmedabad Municipal Corporation in favour of the Corporation.

Inter Corporate Deposits(ICD) from Gujarat Mineral Development Corporation (GMDC) :

As per the directives of the Govt. of Gujarat Finance Dept. vide their letter No. JNV/1099/Court/6/
A dated 06/08/1999 and 13/08/1999 the Corporation has entered into an arrangement whereby
Gujarat Mineral Development Corporation (GMDC) had placed an ICD amounting to Rs.
20,00,00,000 with Gujarat Agro Industries Corporation Ltd. (GAICL). In turn GAICL had released
Rs. 20,00,00,000 to Gujarat Dairy Development Corporation (GDDC) (which was facing BIFR
proceedings) on the following terms and conditions:a) This arrangement was for one year only. It
was anticipated that GDDC would sell off its assets and repay this amount to GAICL within 12
months and in turn GAICL would release an ICD to GMDC immediately.b) The rate of interest was
to be determined and regulated as per Finance Department circular no. PLA/1094/3088/KH dated
26/07/1995.c) Failure to the above arrangements especially with regard to repayment of principal
and interest the Government of Gujarat (GoG) agreed to repay principal and interest amount to
GMDC.d) GAICL would finalize mode of payment terms and condition etc. for onward releasing of
Rs. 2000 Lakhs to GDDC at the same terms mentioned in point (a) & (b) above mainly to meet with
the expenditure towards VRS to its employees.

The above arrangement was also approved by the Board of Directors in its Meeting held on 03/08/
1999 and consequently the money was received from GMDC on 07/08/1999 and was released to
GDDC on the same date.

Subsequent to this the money was not received back within one year as stipulated. The assets and
liabilities of GDDC were taken over by the Govt. of Gujarat in terms of GR No. DDC/1304/2775/
5.2. dated 03/07/2007 and the Govt. of Gujarat undertook to repay all present and future financial
and legal liabilities of GDDC in terms of the BIFR order dated 14/01/2003 and 07/08/2006.

Since then GAICL has been pursuing the matter with the Govt. of Gujarat for its settlement. On 11/
08/2008 in a letter addressed to GMDC the Govt. of Gujarat has informed GMDC to make full
provision for outstanding principal and interest as per the Accounting Standards prescribed by the
Institute of Chartered Accounts of India. The letter also stated that Government of Gujarat would
consider to repay the dues of GMDC on realization of sale proceeds of the land as and when
possible. Based on the same GMDC has made full provision for outstanding amount and interest
in its Books of Accounts.

In view of the above the management does not find it necessary to make a provision for ICD given
to the GDDC as repayment of the same is liability of Government of Gujarat and more particularly
liability of Corporation for repayment of equivalent amount of ICD to GMDC is dependent upon
receipt of money from Government of Gujarat. The management also found it necessary to
refrain from making provision for interest receivable from GDDC as well as interest payable to
GMDC in terms of stated facts and in line with legal opinion received from law expert.



10.4
10.4.1

10.4.2

10.5

Other loans and advances

Other loans and advances consists of loan given by the Corporation of Rs.25,00,000 to Gujarat
Tractor Corporation Limited in the year 1991-92. The ownership of the said Corporation is changed
and transferred to Mahindra Gujarat Tractor Limited. As per GR No.GTC-1096-2181-K5 dt.23rd
March 1999 of Govt.of Gujarat the said liability of repayment of loan of Rs.25,00,000 is shifted
from Mahendra Gujarat Tractor Limited to Gujarat Industrial Development Corp.Ltd (G.I.D.C). Since
it is a long outstanding the corporation has made a provision of Rs.25,00,000 during the financial
year 2011-12.

Other Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received

Other Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received contains Rs.21,11,259
pertaining to the balance receivable from Union Bank of India (UBI).There was fire at Corporation’s
Juhapura Office and the Union Bank of India Extension Counter on 7th December 1992. The
records lying at Juhapura office and Union Bank of India Extension Counter were totally destroyed.
Thereafter accounts were reconstructed from internal/external/MIS Reports/other relevant
information & evidences as available at that point of time. The resultant unreconcile balance
receivable from UBI of Rs. 21,11,259 was provided as doubtful deposit.

The Corporation had filed Civil Suit against the Bank of Baroda Navrangpura Branch Ahmedabad
in the year 1984 for appropriation of Rs. 19,31,368 against the time deposit of Rs. 22,00,000 with
the said bank. The appropriation by the bank was mainly on account of Letter of Credit amount
given to the Corporation on exports of Onion before realizing the money from bank by opening the
Letter of Credit. Since the buyer did not honour the Letter of Credit the amount of Rs. 19,31,368
paid by Bank of Baroda was appropriated against the time deposit of the Corporation. In the
Financial year 2012- 2013 the corporation has made an additional provision of Rs.2,68,632 in
addition to Rs.19,31,368 provided earlier against deposit with Bank of Baroda Navrangpura Branch
Ahmedabad of Rs.22,00,000.Civil Suit filed by the Corporation has since been decided and the
Court has awarded the decree for Rs.28,81,080 payment on defendant jointly and severally in
favour of Corporation against the following Letter of Credit issued in favour of:

(1) Bank of Credit and Commercial and International Overseas Ltd Sri Lanka
(2) Bank of Credit and Commercial and International Overseas Ltd Bombay
(3) M/s. VRM Brothers Sri Lanka and

(4) M/s Parikh Brothers Bombay.

Income tax refund receivable

Income Tax refund receivable of Rs. 165,45,169 (previous year of Rs.164,81,889) comprises of
refundable dues in respect of previous assessment years. The assessing authorities have not
released the refunds in respect of orders for refund passed by ITAT & CIT Appeals. Considering
the facts and circumstances underlying the Income Tax Refund Receivable, management has
found it necessary to make provision for sum of Rs. 160,56,586 (Previous Year : Rs. 160,56,586).



11. Other Non Current Assets

Amount in Rs

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST AS AT 31ST
MARCH 2015 | MARCH 2014
Non-Current Bank Balances
Balances with banks in Fixed Deposit Accounts
For More than 12 Months 22,237,354 72,576,478
TOTAL 22,237,354 72,576,478
12. Inventories
Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST AS AT 31ST
MARCH 2015 | MARCH 2014
Raw Materials 6,842,484 16,093,657
Finished Goods 22,167,438 10,286,944
Stock-in-Trade 393,020,295 75,706,291
Stores and Spares 560,366 581,718
Packing Material 7,343,597 6,102,507
TOTAL 429,934,180 108,771,117




13. Trade Receivables

Amount in Rs

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST AS AT 31ST
MARCH 2015 | MARCH 2014
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from
the date they are due for repayment
Secured - Considered good 8,922,164 10,009,835
Unsecured - Considered good 34,134,967 25,404,026
Doubtful 76,996,851 74,887,182
120,053,982 110,301,043
Less: Provision for doubtful trade receivables (76,996,851) (75,754,681)
43,057,131 34,546,361
Others
Secured - Considered good 61,478,236 57,554,018
Unsecured - Considered good 93,474,345 77,121,104
154,952,581 134,675,122
TOTAL H#H 169,221,483

13.1 Provision for doubtful trade receivables includes provision of Rs. 138,40,002 (Previous year Rs.
132,07,000) is in respect of subsidy claim pending to be received for material issued to parties
under Bio-gas and other subsidies. The said claims are pending for more than 3 years because

certification of the claims is pending.

138.2 Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for
repayment of Rs. 89,22,164 ( Previous year : Rs. 100,09,835 ) and other receivables of Rs.
614,78,236 (Previous Year : Rs. 575,54,018 ) are considered to be secured by the management
against security deposit received from respective persons and held by the Corporation.



14. Cash and Bank Balances
Amount in Rs

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST AS AT 31ST
MARCH 2015 | MARCH 2014
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand 354371.25 765,393
Cheques drafts on hand 3526760970 14,196,210
Balances with banks
in Current Accounts 761804527.9 286,148,397
in Fixed Deposit Accounts
With original maturity of
Less Than 3 months 133305000 70,755,000
Other bank balances
3 months to 12 months 90145528 42225000
TOTAL 4512370397 414,090,000
14.1 Balance with Banks in fixed deposits accounts comprises sum of Rs Nil (Previous Year : Rs.
7,20,75,000 ) pledged as security against the Bank Guarantees issued by Union Bank of India.
15. Short-Term Loans and Advances
Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST AS AT 31ST
MARCH 2015 | MARCH 2014
Unsecured , considered good
(a) Inter Corporate Deposits
Gujarat State Financial Services 2,680,000,000 | 1,520,000,000
(b) Security deposits 239,205 235,076
(c) Loans and advances to employees 729,766 633,340
(d) Prepaid expenses 1,094,278 975,704
(e) Balances with government authorities
(i) CENVAT credit receivable 259,646 1,687,247
(ii) VAT Refund receivable 2382605.19 1536038.61
(iii) Service Tax credit receivable 2,050 10,016
(f) Advance to Supplier 1,460,236 1,172,471
(g) Others 1,647,557 1,854,148
TOTAL 2,687,815,344 | 1,528,104,040




16. Other Current Assets

Amount in Rs

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST AS AT 31ST
MARCH 2015 | MARCH 2014
(a) Tangible fixed assets held for disposal

(Refer Note No. 16.1) 812325.8 812326

Less : Provision for loss on tangible fixed
asset held for disposal -562326 -562326
249999.8 250000
(b) Subsidy Receivable 28487808.13 | 38351465.23
(c) Interest accrued on deposits 142994069 54656656.02
(d) Rent Receivable 0 1613880
(e) Advance deposited for gratuity 0 3556650
(f) Advance deposited for Leave Salary Liabilities 0 2945790
(g) Group Insurance Receivable 13300 0
TOTAL 171745177 101374441.3

16.1 Tangible Fixed Assets held for disposal

16.1.1 “Tangible fixed assets held for disposal” pertains to property named “Onion Meda” situated at
Vadali. The same had been disclosed in the block of “Fixed Assets” upto the year 2010-11 but
during the year 2011-12. It has been transferred under other current assets in accordance with the

Schedule Il to the Companies’ Act 2013.

16.1.2 The said property was sold at Rs. 2,50,000 and the possession had been passed on to the buyer.
Since the sale deed for the transaction has not been executed due to non-receipt of No Objection
Certificate (NOC) from Govt. of Gujarat the sale of property has not been given effect in the
financial statements. Consequently the sale proceeds of Rs. 2,50,000 are included under the head
“Other Liabilities” in “Note No. 6 Other Current Liabilities” and the Corporation has made “Provision
for loss on tangible fixed asset held for disposal” amounting to Rs. 5,62,326 in the financial year

2011-12.



: GUJARAT AGRO INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LTD. .

17 Revenue from Operations
Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS For the year ended For the year ended
on 31.03.2015 on 31.03.2014
(a) Sale of Products
Finished Goods 144,336,364 123,056,472
Trading Goods 3,003,496,841 3,486,920,596
3,147,833,204 3,609,977,068
Less: Excise duty (11,880,227) (10,120,877)
3,135,952,978 3,599,856,191
(b) Income from Services 4,094,650 8,538,900
(c) Other Operating Revenues 2,355,000 68,323,894
3,154,282,854 3,686,839,862
TOTAL 3,142,402,628 3,676,718,985
17.1 Particulars of Sales of Products Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS For the year ended For the year ended
on 31.03.2015 on 31.03.2014
Finished goods
Pesticides 108,901,577 93,980,557
Bio- Fertiliser(LIQ) 36,003,284 29,088,534
144,904,861 123,069,091
Less:
Trade Discount (568,497) (12,619)
Total 144,336,364 123,056,472
Traded goods
Fertilizers / Bio - Fertilizers 2,967,240,175 3,338,736,437
Pesticides / Bio - Pesticides 0 14,743,380
Agriculture Implants 21,000 46,854,852
Tractor / Power Tiller 0 4,184,286
Seeds 865,060 -
Storage Bins 35,305,182 53,316,381
Bio - Gas Material 304 834
Agriculture Handtools 45,200 29,084,426
Others 19,920 0
Total 3,003,496,841 3,486,920,596
TOTAL 3,147,833,204 3,609,977,068
17.2 Particulars of Income from Services Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS For the year ended For the year ended
on 31.03.2015 on 31.03.2014
Bio - Gas Supervision Charges 1,854,000 5,108,400
Bio - Gas Service Charges 2,240,650 3,430,500
TOTAL 4,094,650 8,538,900
17.3 Particulars of Other Operating Revenues
PARTICULARS For the year ended For the year ended
on 31.03.2015 on 31.03.2014
NOC Income on Onion Export 0 67,524,894
Agri business Centres’ registration fees 975,000 799,000
Aviation operation income 1,380,000 -
TOTAL 2,355,000 68,323,894
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18  Other Income
Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS For the year ended | For the year ended
on 31.03.2015 on 31.03.2014
(a) Interest Income (Refer Note (i) below) 222,219,096 175,951,692
(b)  Other non-operating income (Refer Note (ii) below) 46,479,460 40,665,033
(c) Dividend received 83,400 -
(c) Excess provision for doubtful debts written back 1,254,649 460,669
(d) Profit on sale of Fixed Assets - 997
TOTAL S HHEH
Note 17 Other income (contd.)
PARTICULARS For the year ended | For the year ended
on 31.03.2015 on 31.03.2014
(i) Interest income comprises:
Interest on Bank Deposits 21,394,343 29,357,848
Interest on loans and advances 222,820 548,715
Interest on overdue trade receivables 18,629,208 17,514,149
Interest on Fixed Deposits with GSFS 181,967,194 128,525,903
Other Interest 5,531 5,077
TOTAL HHH HHHH
(ii) Other non-operating income comprises:
Cash Discount 14,968,911 11,210,205
Licence fees 5,751,510 4,471,635
Reimbursement of Expenses 6,057,462 4,467,034
Handling Charges - 1,492,165
Sale of Scrap 40,829 741,802
Sundry Credit balances written back 175,225 2,775
Tender fees 354,000 204,000
Technical fees - 414,500
Forfeiture of Trade/ EM Deposit 550,000 530,000
Registration fees 110,500 400,000
Renewal Fees from UT/ABC 285,900 445,000
Vatav kasar 9,066
Admin Charges Recd. On Subsidy Sales - 539,214
Miscelleneous income 2,420,349 558,284
Prior Period Items (Refer Note (iii) below) 15,755,707 15,188,419
TOTAL HHHH# HHHHH




(iii) Details of Prior period items
Rate difference for Purchase - 14,961,710
Professional Charges - 99,270
Interest 324,051 42,879
Renewal Fees - 25,500
Rebate & Discount 5,900 25,097
Bank Charges - 5,609
Aviation operation Income 1,380,000 -
Cold Storage Operation Income 852,826 -
MFMS Charges 483,638 -
Godown Rent 950,400 -
Reimbursement of Exp. (Refer Note No. 1 below) 9423236 0
Sundry Credit balance written back 4,494 -
Excess provision of supervision charges 92,700 -
Miscellaneous income 2,238,462 28,354
TOTAL 15,755,707 15,188,419
Note No. 1

Reimbursement of Expenses comprises of Rs. 55,136 for Air conditioner repairing expenses, Rs.
10,000 for Vehicle expenses, Rs. 61,765 for electricity expenses of Banana Pack House and Rs.
92,96,335 for recovery of overhead expenses for Vibrant Gujarat Krushi Mahotsav Summit in the
financial year 2013-14.



19 A Cost of Materials Consumed

Amount in Rs

PARTICULARS Fortheyearended | For the year ended
on 31.03.2015 on 31.03.2014
Opening Stock 16,093,657 8,556,356
Add: Purchases 55,633,535 61,773,931
71,727,192 70,330,287
Less: Closing stock 6,842,484 16,093,657
Cost of Material Consumed 64,884,708 54,236,630
Material consumed comprises:
Imids 18.5/17.8.SI 7,196,826 6,742,750
Profenophos Tech 12,453,732 6,384,192
Remix 6,776,322 4,654,764
Melathion Tech. 3,254,955 4,638,788
Pendimithen 11,931,373 3,908,798
Cholrphyriphos 6,040,265 3,347,981
Phorate 10 Cg 3,561,050 2,873,010
Fen Tech 2,391,106 2,648,330
Monocrotophos - 2,244,609
Acephate 75 Sp 2,336,324 2,132,097
Cartap - 2,092,502
Quanalphos 1,856,421 2,013,593
Mancozeb 75 Wp 1,433,357 1,477,130
Cyper Tech. 686,136 845,510
Cyclohexanone - 758,838
Soapstone 12,640 -
Emulsifire Isro 902,732 -
Acetamprid 20 Sp 431,460 -
Others 3,620,009 7,473,738
TOTAL 64,884,708 54,236,630
19 B Purchase of Traded Goods
PARTICULARS Fortheyearended | For the year ended
on 31.03.2015 on 31.03.2014
Purchase of Fertilizers 3,255,435,989 2,881,212,246
Purchase of Seeds 850,660 0
Purchase of Storage Bins 32,869,989 49,409,184
Purchase of Pesticides 0 12385516
Purchase of Agriculture Implants 18,525 30304105.8
Purchase of Agriculture Handtools 42035 42592702
3,289,217,198 3,015,903,754
Less:
Rebate Received 2,864,475 5,762,334
TOTAL 3,286,352,722 3,010,141,420




19 C Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade

PARTICULARS Fortheyearended | For the year ended
on 31.03.2015 on 31.03.2014
Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods 23,905,596 13,568,233
Stock-in-trade 391,282,137 72,425,002
415,187,733 85,993,235
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 13,568,233 10,459,458
Work-in-progress 0 27,377
Stock-in-trade 72,425,002 506,995,580
85,993,235 517,482,415
Net (increase) / decrease (329,194,498) 431,489,180
Details of the Inventories at the end of the year:
PARTICULARS For the yearended | For the year ended
on 31.03.2015 on 31.03.2014
Finished Goods
Pesticides
Liquide 16,361,616 8,998,809
W.D.P. 2,609,228 -
Dust 2,129,259 1,250,134
Granuals 878,709 -
Bio-Fertilisers
Liquide 1,926,784 2,093,554
TOTAL 23,905,596 12,342,497
Work-in-progress - -
Stock-in-trade
Fertilisers 390,738,617 71,756,451
Fertilisers Others (Micro) 75,448 158,731
Bio Gas Raw Materials - 34,039
Pesticides - Liquide - 11,798
Storage Bins 2,114 -
Others 465,958 1,694,719
TOTAL 391,282,137 73,650,738




20 Employee Benefits Expense
Amount in Rs

PARTICULARS Fortheyearended | For the year ended
on 31.03.2015 on 31.03.2014
Salaries and wages 92,923,088 91,464,956
Contributions to provident and other funds 21,925,462 11,413,117
Staff welfare expenses 2,156,696 3,088,292
TOTAL 117,005,246 105,966,365
21 Finance Costs
Amount in Rs
PARTICULARS For the yearended | For the year ended
on 31.03.2015 on 31.03.2014
(@) Interest Expense:
Interest on security deposit 9,421,145 9,609,927
Interest paid to others 25,864 9,243
(b) Other Borrowing Costs:
Bank Charges 35,534 81,594
TOTAL 9,482,543 9,700,764




22  Other Expenses

PARTICULARS

For the year ended
on 31.03.2015

For the year ended
on 31.03.2014

Consumption of stores and spare parts

(Refer note 22.1 below) 76,024 395,732
Consumption of packing materials

(Refer note 22.2 below) 17,410,860 16,521,286
Power and fuel 2,607,286 2,883,907
Rent including lease rentals 6,510,819 3,685,815
Repairs and maintenance

Buildings 123,805 159,885
Plant & Machinery 967,296 1,150,881
Others 260,912 926,958
Insurance 1,605,525 959,510
Rates and taxes 2,080,414 2,435,461
Travelling and conveyance 3,568,830 3,530,473
Sales commission 260,348 -
Sales discount 7,696,549 7,571,711
Business promotion 274,391 631,095
Legal and professional 6,394,522 7,870,082
Payments to auditors (Refer Note 23.8) 318,157 252,123
Provision for doubtful trade and other receivables

loans and advances 3,174,877 778,774
Supervision & Service Charges - Bio - Gas 1,034,138 2,658,375
Prior period expenses (Refer Note 22.3 below) 1,185,071 530,240
Miscellaneous expenses (Refer Note 22.4 below) 18,571,499 17,352,811
TOTAL 74,121,324 70,295,119
PARTICULARS Fortheyearended | For the year ended

on 31.03.2015

on 31.03.2014

221 Details of Consumption of Stores & Spare Parts
Opening stock 581,718 589,664
Add: Purchases 54,672 387,786
636,390 977,450
Less: Closing Stock 560,366 581,718
Consumption 76,024 395,732

22.2 Details of Consumption of Packing Materials

Opening stock 6,102,507 6,967,276
Add: Purchases 18,651,950 15,656,517
24,754,457 22,623,793
Less: Closing Stock 7,343,597 6,102,507
Consumption 17,410,860 16,521,286




GUJARAT AGRO INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LTD.

22.3 Details of Prior period expenses
Rent 330,610 -
Commission - 117,080
Counsultancy 4,050 91,092
Rate & Taxes - 89,658
Sales Tax - 72,000
Loading Charges - 34,654
Printing and stationery - 23,282
Purchase tax - 23,127
Service Tax 55,169 19,619
Interest 52,814 7,596
Repair & Maintenance 503,868 -
Telephone 1,211 -
Electricity 30,401 -
Water Bill 2,000 -
TA/DA Travelling Exp. 600 -
Rebates & Discounts 9,140 -
PF Admin Charges 65,124 -
Transport Charges - 9,940
Krushi Mahotsav Expenses 1,300 -
Advertisement Exp 33,600 -
Misc. Exps. 95,184 42,192
Total 1,185,071 530,240
22.4 Miscellaneous Expenses
Security charges 6,645,419 5,466,440
Office expenses 1,009,229 1,360,168
Entertainment expenses 548,961 659,832
Meeting expenses 56,037 91,781
Tender fees paid 88,486 30,900
Other expenses 1,328,566 1,437,653
Donation 276,000 -
Computer & Internet 211,719 -
Bad trade and other receivables loans and advances written off 53 53
Subcontracting - Labour Contract 2,541,447 2,493,097
Water 126,737 125,090
Communication 1,245,447 1,414,774
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GUJARAT AGRO INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LTD.

Printing and stationery 1,179,793 998,214
Freight and forwarding 3,219,270 3,243,309
Subscription for periodicals 42,722 -
Factory expenses 16,354 -
Electricity expenses 9,991 -
Festival celebration expenses 17,500 -
Testing expenses 9,500 -
Vatav & kasar (4,550) -
Garden expenses 120 -
License fees 2,700 -
Supervision & Service Charges - 31,500
Total 18,571,499 17,352,811
Note Extraordinary items
PARTICULARS For the yearended | For the year ended
on 31.03.2015 on 31.03.2014
Computer Software w/off 2024482 -
Total 2,024,482 -
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Contingent Liabilities & Commitments
(I) Contingent Liabilities

Particulars

Claims against the Company/ disputed
liabilities not acknowledged as debt
(a) Venfarm Chemicals Pvt. Ltd.

(b) Rayalseema Agro Enterprise

(c) M/s. Chems India - Hydrabad

(d) Khandelwal Fertiliser and Chemical
(e) Swastik Overseas Corporation

(f) M/s. National Adevertising Co. Ltd.
(g) Others

TOTAL

Other matters for which the Company is

contingently liable

(a) Disputed demand of the employees for wages
allowances and reinstatements

(b) Disputed demand of Income tax (Refer Note No. 23.1.1)
(c) Disputed demand of Sales Tax (Refer Note No. 23.1.1)
(d) Interest payable on ICD of GMDC

TOTAL

Bank Guarantee issued

Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed
on capital account and not provided for

23.1.1 Explanation to Note 23.1 (I) (B) (c)

As at March
31st, 2015

3000000
2600000
541160.54
205046.21
138151
107400
146881.66
6738639.41

Unascertainable
9486000
272000
287662000
297420000

70372183

Amount in Rs.

As at March
31st, 2014

3000000
2600000
541000
205000
138000
107000
153000
6744000

Amount in Rs.
Unascertainable
9486000
272000
267662000

277420000

32000000

66046607

Sales Tax department has raised sales tax demand of Rs. 8,61,344 against which the corporation
has already paid an amount of Rs.4,75,300 and an amount of Rs.1,14,508 is withheld by the
department. Based on the legal opinion, the amount already paid/withheld by the department is
likely to be refunded and the balance amount of Rs.2,71,536 is not likely to be payable. In view of the
same no provision has been made for Rs.2,71,536 and refunds if any shall be accounted for as and

when it will be received.



The year-wise position of pending / disputed assessment orders are given as under :

Amount in Rs.

AY. Name of the unit Amount of | Amount Paid / Outstanding Remarks
demand Provided Amount
1990 - 91 ASC - Surat 448,312 245,300 203,012 Appeal
1991 - 92 ASC - Surat 413,032 230,000 183,032 Pending at
Tribunal
Total 861,344 475,300 386,044
1989-90 ASC - Surat (Claim of refund withhold by the department) 114508
Net Contingent Liabilities 271,536
23.2 As perAccounting Standard 15 (Revised), “Employee Benefits”, the disclosure of Employee benefits

as defined in the Accounting Standard are given below:
(a). Defined Contribution Plan

The Company has recognized an amount of Rs. 27,60,759 (previous year Rs.29,74,905) as expenses
(net of realised gains) under the defined contribution plan in the statement of Profit & Loss for the
year ended 31st March, 2015 towards provident and other funds.

(b). Defined Benefit Plan

The employee’s gratuity fund scheme managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India is a defined
benefit plan. The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method which recognize each period of service to build up the final obligation.
The obligation for leave encashment is recognized in the same manner as gratuity. The most recent
valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity and
leave encashment were carried out as at March 31, 2015.The following table sets out the funded
status of the defined benefit schemes and the amount recognised in the financial statements:



Amount in Rs

Particulars

Gratuity (Funded) Leave Encashment (Funded)
For the year For the year For the year For the year
ended ended ended ended

March 31, 2015

March 31, 2014

March 31,2015 March 31, 2014

(a) | Reconciliation of opening and closing
balances of Defined Benefit obligation
Defined Benefit obligation at beginning of the year 97,955,273 98,312,612 47,697,815 47,611,562
Current ServiceCost 4,352,121 4316315 210,270 203,311
Interest Cost 8,953,112 7865017 4,359,580 3,808,884
Acturial(gain)/loss 7,218,484 (2,558,235) 4,970,554 1,737,403
Benefit paid (9,928,900) (9,980,540) (4,832,706) (5,662,839)
Defined Benefit obligation at year end 108,550,090 97,955,169 52,405,513 47,698,321
(b) | Reconciliation of opening and closing balances
of fair value of plan assets
Fair Value of plan assets at beginning of the year 101,628,689 93,415,112 50,643,605 44,008,334
Expected return on plan assets 8,841,696 8,127,108 4,405,994 3,828,725
Acturial gain/(loss) (255,469) 52,639 (84,705) (133,337)
Employer contribution 10,014,452 - 8,602,722
Benefits Paid (9,928,900) (9,980,540) (4,832,706) (5,662,839)
Fair Value of plan assets at year end 100,286,016 101,628,771 50,132,188 50,643,605
(c¢) | Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations
Fair value of plan assets as at 31st March 100,286,016 101,628,771 50,132,188 50,643,605
Present value of obligation as at 31st March 108,550,090 97,955,169 52,405,513 47,698,321
Amount recognized in Balance Sheet (8,264,074) 3,673,602 (2,273,325) 2,945,284
(d) | Expenses recognized during the year
Current Service Cost 4,352,121 4,316,315 210,270 203,311
Interest Cost 8,953,112 7,865,017 4,359,580 3,808,884
Expected return on plan assets (8,841,696) (8,127,108) (4,405,994) (3,828,725)
Net Actuarial(gain)/loss 7,473,953 (2,610,874) 5,055,259 1,870,740
Net Cost 11,937,490 1,443,350 5,219,115 2,054,210

(e) | Investment Details % invested % invested % invested % invested
Life Insurance Corporation Of India 100 100 100 100

(f) | Actuarial assumptions
Mortality Table (L.I.C) 2006-08 1994-96 2006-08 1994-96
(Ultimate) (Ultimate) (Ultimate) (Ultimate)
Discount rate (per annum) 0.0789 0.08 0.0789 0.08
Expected rate of return on plan assets (per annum) 0.0789 0.087 0.0789 0.087
Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05




23.3

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation take in to account
inflation seniority promotion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the
employment market. The above information is certified by the Actuary. The expected rate of return
on plan assets is determined considering several applicable factors mainly the composition of plan
assets held assessed risks historical results of return on plan assets and the Company’s policy for
plan assets management.

Segment information

The Company has identified business segments as its primary segment and geographic segments
as its secondary segment. Business segments are primarily Fertilizers and Pesticides. Revenues
and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment.
Expenses which are not directly identifiable to each reportable segment have been allocated on the
basis of associated revenues of the segment and manpower efforts. All other expenses which are
not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed as unallocable expenses. Assets and
liabilities that are directly attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under each reportable
segment. All other assets and liabilities are disclosed as unallocable. Fixed assets that are used
interchangeably amongst segments are not allocated to primary and secondary segments.



1. Information about Primary Business Segment: (Current Year 2014-15)
Amount in Rs.
Particulars Fertilizers Pesticides Services | Unallocated| Grand Total
A. | Revenue

1a. Trading Goods (Net sales) 2967240175 0 0| 36256666.02| 3003496841
1b. Manufacturing Goods (Net sales) 36003283.5 | 96452853.55 0 0] 132456137.1
1c.Other operating revenues 0 0 6449650 0 6449650
Total Net Sales 3003243458 | 96452853.55 6449650 | 36256666.02 | 3142402628
2a.0ther Income 0 0 0| 270036604.8| 270036604.8
Total Revenue 3003243458 | 96452853.55 6449650 | 306293270.8 | 3412439233
Cost of sales 2934152270 |  54109453.2 33739174 | 3022000898 | 3,022,042,933
Other Expenses 80233177.52 | 23045626.53 1034138 | 91523651.95| 195836594
Segment Result (PBIT) -11141989.61 | 19297773.82 5415512 181030444.9| 194601741.1
Interest payment 9449149.29 29171 4223 9482543.29
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional item -20591138.9 | 19268602.82 5415512 | 181026221.9| 185119197.8
Exceptional items:

Computer Software Written Off 0 0 0 2024482 2024482
Profit/(Loss) before tax -20591138.9 | 19268602.82 5415512 | 179001739.9| 183094715.8
Income Tax/FBT of earlier years (Excess)/

Short provision (Net) 0 0 0 0 0
Provision for taxation 0 0 0 65500000 65500000
Profit/(Loss) after tax -20591138.9 | 19268602.82 5415512 | 113501739.9| 117594715.8
Other information:

Segment Assets 1,239,168,161 42,900,231 7,453,358,379 | 8,735,426,771
Segment Liabilities 891,967,118 12,921,560 7,830,538,093 | 8,735,426,771
Capital Expenditure 66,012,870 66,012,870
Depreciation & Amortisation 4,710,024 4,710,024
Non Cash Expenditure other than Depreciation 61,302,847 | 61,302,847




1. Information about Primary Business Segment (Previous Year 2013-14)
Amount in Rs.
Particulars Fertilizers Pesticides Services | Unallocated| Grand Total
A. | Revenue
1a.Trading Goods (Net sales) 3483577156 3343440 0 0] 3486920596
1b.Manufacturing Goods (Net sales) 29088534 83847061 0 0 112935595
1c.Other operating revenues 0 0 76862794 0 76862794
Total Net Sales 3512665690 87190501 76862794 0| 3676718985
2a.0ther Income 11624500 0 0 205060500 216685000
Total Revenue 3524290190 87190501 76862794 205060500 | 3893403985
Cost of sales 3522544301 75225639 | 16,415,375 59104000 | 3673289315
Other Expenses
Segment Result (PBIT) 1745889 11964862 60447419 145956500 | 220114670
Interest payment 9625317 31000 500 44000 9700817
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional item -7879428 11933862 60446919 145912500 210413853
Exceptional items:
Profit on sale of Assets 0 0 0 997 997
Profit/(Loss) before tax -7879428 11933862 60446919 145913497| 210414850
Income Tax/FBT of earlier years (Excess)/
Short provision (Net) 0 0 0 0 0
Provision for taxation 0 0 0 72155000 72155000
Profit/(Loss) after tax -7879428 11933862 60446919 73758497 | 138259850
Other information:
Segment Assets 517,653,061 41,300,015 5,743,946 | 2,692,029,000| 3256726022
Segment Liabilities 855,049,739 25,137,705 | 24,296,168 | 2,352,242,000| 3256725612
Capital Expenditure 82,044,000 82044000
Depreciation & Amortisation 1,553,000 1553000
Non Cash Expenditure other than Depreciation 80,491,000 80491000




2. Information about Secondary Segments is not applicable.

234 Related party disclosures
23.4.1 Disclosure as required under AS 18 in relation to “Related Party”:
Sr.No. | Name of Related Party Relationship
1 Shri Babubhai Jebaliya Key Management Personnel
— Chairman
2 Shri K.S. Randhawa IFS
— Managing Director (Appointed on 17/01/2015) Key Management Personnel
3 Shri N.K.Singh IFS
— Managing Director
(Appointed from 28/10/2010 to 15/10/2014) Key Management Personnel
4 Shri B.R. Shah IFS
- I/C Managing Director
(Appointed from 15/10/2014 to 17/01/2015) Key Management Personnel
23.4.2 Transactions during the year with related parties :

Amount in Rs

Nature of transactions Key Management Personnel
2014-15 2013-14
Remunaration to Chairman 117500 0
Remunaration to M.D. 1252712 1541000
Directors’ Sitting fees 19500 0
Reimbursement of Expenses to Chairman / Director 54850 0

23.5 Payments to Auditors:

Amount in Rs.
2014-15 2013-14
Audit Fees 280,900 224,720
Reimbursement of expenses 24,728 27,403
Total 305628 252123
23.6 Leases

Operating Leases

The company has given on cancellable operating lease licences for certain assets for lock in period
of five years. Lease licence fees for lease agreements are as under:

Amount in Rs.

Particluars 2014-15 2013-14
Banana Pack House 100000 360000
Integrated Pack House 4381008 4111000
Irradiation Plant 1270501.72 0




Earning per Share:

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 2014-15 2013-14

Net profit after tax as per statement of Profit & Loss
attributables to Equity share holders (Rs.) 117552681.1 | 138259990.8

Weighted average No. of Equity Shares used as a

denominator for calculating EPS 808250 808250

(c) Basic and diluted earning per share (Rs.) 145.4409912 | 171.0609227

(d) Face value per Equity Share (Rs.) 100 100

23.8 Deferred Tax Liability / (Assets)

Deferred Tax liabilities / (Assets) are not recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and
Balance Sheet as per the requirement of AS 22 as specified under section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013, reade with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) rules, 2014.

23.9 Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder prescribe that company to
which these provisions apply, should spend in every financial year, at least 2% of the average net
profits made during the three immediately preceding financial years, in pursuance of CSR Policy.
The provisions pertaining to CSR as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable to
the Corporation. The financial details as sought by the Companies Act, 2013:

Particulars Amount

- Average Net Profit of the Company for the last three financial years 78744325.67

- Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of the average net profit as above) 1574886.513

- Total Amount actually spent on CSR Expenses during the year 251000
(Contribution to Kanya Kelavani Nidhi)

- Amount Unspent, if any 1323886.513

23.10 In the opinion of the management, the Current Assets, Loans and advances are realizable at the
values stated in the financial statements in the ordinary course of business and adequate provision
for all known liabilities has been made in the accounts.

23.11 Balances of Trade receivable Trade Payable, Long Term Borrowings, Deposits given / taken,

Advance given / taken, Other Loans & Advances, ICD Given, and Other Current Liabilities are
subject to confirmation / reconciliation. Necessary adjustment if any will be made in the books on
receipt of the confirmation or on settlement with the parties.



: GUJARAT AGRO INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LTD :
23.12 Particulars of Confirmed balances are as under :
Particulars Total o/s Confirmed % to Total
Balance Rs. Balance Rs.
Bank Balances and Deposits 1007492410 1007492410 100.00
Account Receivables 198009712 0 -
Account Payables 390772640 0 -
Loans and Advances 2917967891 2680000000 91.84
Loans and Liabilities 200000000 0 -
Other Current Assets 171481877.2 142994069 83.39
Other Current Liabilities 403856557.4 0 -

23.13 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond
with the current year’s classification / disclosure.
23.14 Value of imports and value of raw materials materials consumed
(@) CIF value of import NIL
(b) Consumption of raw materials (Amount in Rs.)
2014-15 2013-14
Amount % of Amount % of
(Rs.) | consumption (Rs.) | consumption
Raw materials
Imported NIL NIL NIL NIL
Indigenous 64884707.82 1 54236630 1
23.15 Expenditure in foreign Currency NIL
23.16 Earning in foreign currency NIL
23.17 The Corporation has paid Rs. 20,24,482 to Gujarat Info-Petro Limited as progress payment for the

development of Computer software from financial year 2010-11 to 2012-13 but the Software was
never put to use and the management does not anticipate any future economic benefit to the
Corporation. Hence Computer Software has been written off during the year and the same has
been shown as Exceptional item in the statement of Profit & Loss.

As per our report of even date attached
For C R Sharedalal & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 109943W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

J.K.Patel Chairman Managing Director
Partner
M. No.: 047136
Place : AHMEDABAD Place : GANDHINAGAR
Date : Date :
1 ANNUAL REPORT-14-15 -ﬂ
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To
The Members,
Gujarat Agro Industries Corporation Limited,
AHMEDABAD.

Your Directors are pleased to present 46th Annual Report along with the audited financial statements of the
Corporation for the accounting year ended 31st March 2016.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The financial results for the year ended 31st March, 2016 are summarized below:

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

on on

31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Sales & Other Income 44154.68 34124.39

Profit before Depreciation and Tax 4762.41 1,897.87

Less: Depreciation 15.95 4710

Profit before extraordinary item and tax 4746.46 1,850.77

Extraordinary Items - 20.25

Profit before Tax 4746.46 1830.52

Less: Provision for taxation 1757.49 655.00

(Excess)/Short Provision of Income Tax for (31.69) -
earlier years

Profit after Tax 3020.66 1175.52

2. DIVIDEND:

The Directors of the Corporation have recommended @ 10% dividend for the year 2015-16.
3. OPERATIONS & FUTURE PLANS:
l. Manufacturing:

a) The Corporation has a Pesticides Formulation Unit at Gondal for manufacturing of various
pesticides such as liquid, wet-able and dust products. The production during the year was
373.508 MT of wet-able and dust products & 180.165 KL of liquid products. The sale in primarily
for Government schemes, Municipal Corporations and farmers through dealers network.

b) A Liquid Bio Fertilizer Unit has been established at Naroda, Ahmedabad under RKVY. The
installed production capacity of the Unit is one lac liters per annum. Bio Fertliser Unit Naroda
has produced 293.00 KL Liquid bio-fertilizer during the year.



VIL.

Trading:

The Corporation has the second largest distribution network of fertilizers in the State. It has a network
of about 1232 Agro Business Centers for sales & distribution of fertilizers, pesticides and other farm
inputs. Fertiliser is procured from Companies such as GSFC, GNFC, IPL, KRIBHCO, RCF, Chambal
Fertilisers & Chemicals Ltd. M/s. Deepak Fertilisers & Chemicals Ltd. & IFFICO etc. We hope, their
regular supply will continue in the forthcoming year and efforts will also be made to add some more
companies in our distribution network. During the year, the Corporation distributed 342999.61 MT of
Fertilizers of value Rs. 366.31 crores. The Corporation is engaged in the sales & distribution of
Storage bins & bio-fertilisers primarily under various Government Subsidy Schemes.

National Biogas & Manure Management Programme:

The Corporation is implementing National Biogas & Manure Management Programme of GOI &
GOG. During the year, 1574 Biogas plants were established & subsidy claims were released to
beneficiaries.

Gujarat Agro Industrial Policy:

The Corporation is the nodal agency for implementation of Gujarat Agro Industrial Policy. It received
46 project proposals with investment of Rs. 170.46 Crore for availing financial assistance under the
policy. During the year, the financial Assistance of Rs. 675.76 lacs was disbursed. Under the Policy,
promotional activities such as organization/ participations in seminars, workshops, exhibitions were
undertaken.

Disbursement of subsidy under Govt. Programs:

The Corporation is one of the nodal agencies of the Department of Agriculture & Cooperation, Govt.
of Guijarat, for disbursement of subsidy under various Government programmes. During the year,
performance of Rs. 507.42 Crores was achieved.

Agri Infrastructure Projects
The Corporation has implemented/implementing the following projects.
Integrated Pack House (IPH), Naroda

*

Integrated Pack House (IPH) for Fruits & Vegetables at Naroda, Ahmedabad was approved
under RKVY scheme in the year 2008-09. The project was commissioned and handed over to
the O&M Operator, M/s Cargo Service Centre India Pvt. Ltd India Pvt. Ltd. w.e.f. 27.01.2010.

Facility was handed over to J.K. Horticulture Export Private Limited in April 2015 for six months.
In the meantime, APEDA, GOI has revised SOP for handling horticulture produce for exports.
Therefore, the facility was in operation for the months of May and June only and 80 MT of
mangos were processed.

GAIC prepared project report for Modification/Upgradation of Integrated Pack House as per new
guidelines of APEDA and submitted to APEDA for financial assistance. APEDA approved the proposal
and released Rs 168.52 lakh, 40% of the total sanctioned amount as advance.

Banana Pack House and Collection Center at Jhagadia

*

Banana Pack House (BPH) at Jaghadia, Bharuch with two Collection Centers was set up with
the financial assistance from APEDA and Agri-Infrastructure Development Scheme of GOG.
After commissioning, the facility was given to M/s CARGO Service Centre India Pvt. Ltd. for



operation and management. However, the facility was in use intermittently due to change in
market dynamics.

GAIC had leased out the facility at Rs. 35,000/- per month for the period of 12 months to M/s
Kheti Farm for operation, maintenance and management. Approximately 1095 MT of Bananas
have been processed during the year.

Centre for Perishable Cargo, SVPI Airport, Ahmedabad

*

Centre for Perishable Cargo (CPC) at Air Cargo Complex, SVPI Airport, Ahmedabad was set
up for exports of fruits and vegetables, processed food and other temperature sensitive products.
M/s Cargo Service Centre India Pvt. Ltd was selected as O&M Agency. However, the facility
could not be operationalized due to the pending approval of Airport Authority of India. Meantime,
Airport Authority of India (AAl) has modified the policy and has allowed handling of General
Cargo and operation of Cargo terminal through contractor i.e. appointment of operation &
management contractor. Subsequently, GAIC signed a fresh supplementary License Agreement
with Air port Authority of India (AAl) as per the revised policy of CPC of Airport Authority of
India.

M/S Cargo Service Centre India Pvt. Ltd was selected to operate, maintain and manage the
facility for five years. The facility was handed over to Agency on Oct., 2015 and operations
started on 16-4-2016 after compliance of necessary statutory requirements.

Dehydrated Onion Cold Storage at APMC Mahuva

*

Dehydrated Onion Cold Storage at APMC Mahuva, Dist. Bhavnagar was commissioned on 7th
March, 2013. During the current year, the plant was non-operational on account of higher raw
onion prices leading to non viability of dehydrated onion processing units. GAIC has floated
tender document for selection of Operations & Maintenance Management Agency to identify
the successful bidder in December 2015 and M/s. Fine Food Industries has been selected
Operations and Maintenance Management Agency and facility will be handed over on 01-4-
2016 for five years.

Radiation Processing Plant for Agro and Fruit products at Bavla

*

The Project for Radiation Processing Plant for Agro and Fruit products at Bavla has been
sanction under RKVY scheme. The project is completed and handed over to the O&M Agency
i.e M/s Universal Medicap Ltd, Vadodara to Operate, Maintain and Manage the facility on 17th
July, 2014 for the period of 5 years. The facility has processed nearly 689.211 MT of produce
during 2015-16

Hi-Tech Potato cold storage at Deesa

*

Hi-tech Potato cold Storage for storing 5000 MT potatoes at Deesa, Banaskantha has been
approved under RKVY in the year 2009-10. M/s. Blue Star Limited has been selected as the
Turnkey Contractor for this project. As on March 31, 2015 the following items are to be
incorporated in the project. They are: 1) Fire Hydrant System, 2) Mezzanine floor structure and
3) Electrical ltems. Tenders for setting up Fire Hydrant System, Mezzanine floor structure and
Electrical Items were floated during the year and Letter of Intent was issued to different parties
and work were under progress.



Rice Flake Mill at Kosamba

* Rice flake unit at APMC, Kosamba, Surat has been sanctioned under RKVY in the year 2011-
12. APMC Kosamba allotted 2455.95 Sqg. mts. (26,436 Sq. Ft.) land on a long term lease of 30
years for construction of the facility. The facility was constructed and inaugurated on 13th
September, 2015. GAIC has floated tender document for the selection of agency for Operations,
Maintenance & Management of the facility during December 2015 but no party participated
inspite of extension of date four times during the year. Efforts will be made to select O&M
operator again.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES/JOINT VENTURE COMPANY/ASSOCIATE COMPANY:

The Company does not have any Subsidiary Companies or Joint Venture Company or Associate
Company as on the end of the financial year under report.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT:

During the year there were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of
the Company which have occurred between the end of financial year of the Company to which the
financial statements relate and the date of the report.

DIRECTORS:

Shri Karmijitsingh Randhawa, IFS was appointed as an Additional Director on 24/03/2015 and was
regularized as Director at the Annual General Meeting held on 30/09/2015.

Dr. Ashok Patel was appointed as an Additional Director on 29/12/2014 and was regularized as
Director at the Annual General Meeting held on 30/09/2015.

Shri Anilkumar Yadav and Shri R. A. Shersiya were appointed as an Additional Directors on 28/09/
2015 and were regularized as Directors at the Annual General Meeting held on 30/09/2015.

Shri Babubhai Jebaliya was ceased to be Chairman of the Corporation w.e.f. 28/10/2016.

Shri Udesinh Baria, Shri Ramsangji Jadeja, Shri Jayeshbhai Naik, Shri Balubhai Tanti, Shri Vasantbhai
Patel and Smt. Vasantiben Patel were ceased to be Directors of Corporation w.e.f. 15/11/2016 and
Dr. B. R. Shah was ceased to be Director w.e.f 04/02/2017 due to retirement by superannuation.

Shri Sanjay Prasad, IAS was appointed as Chairman of the Corporation w.e.f 20/02/2017.

Shri H. D. Shrimali was ceased as Director w.e.f. 02/05/2017 and Shri B. M. Modi was appointed as
Director w.e.f. 08/05/2017.

Shri Karmijitsingh Randhawa, IFS was ceased as Managing Director and Shri Mohammad
Shahid, IAS was appointed as Managing Director w.e.f. 21/07/2017.

Shri R. A. Shersiya was ceased as Director w.e.f. 11/10/2017.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to the requirement of section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors’
Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed:

[.  thatin the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

II.  that the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company.

lll. that the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

IV. that the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

V. that the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

INTERNAL FINANICAL CONTROL.:

The Company is having adequate internal financial controls system in place and the same has been
operating effectively. As regards observations made by the Auditors in their report on the Internal
Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013; vide
clause no. 1 to 3 under the heading Qualified Opinion, the Company has noted the same for
improvement in future.

FORMAL EVALUATION BY BOARD OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE:

It may please be noted that being an unlisted Company or having paid up capital of less than Rs. 25
Crores, the Statement in respect of Formal Evaluation by the Board of its own performance and that
of its committees and individual directors is not applicable to the Company.

ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL VOTING RIGHTS / SWEAT EQUITY SHARES
/ EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME:

During the year under report, the Company has not issued any equity shares with differential voting
rights or sweat equity shares or employee stock option scheme. Hence disclosure regarding the
same is not given.

PERSONNEL.:

* None of the employees of the Company is drawing remuneration requiring disclosure of
information under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

* The relations with the Employees were harmonious and cordial during the year.
AUDIT COMMITTEE:

As on 31st March, 2016, the Audit Committee consisted of three member namely Dr. B. R. Shah
(Chair Person), Shri K. S. Randhawa IFS and Shri Anil Kumar Yadav. During the year under report,
the Audit Committee meetings were held on 29-06-2015, 28-09-2015, 28-12-2015 and 30-03-2016.

BOARD MEETING:
The Board met four times during the year on 29-06-2015, 28-09-2015, 28-12-2015 & 30-03-2016.
STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s. C. R. Sharedalal & Co., Chartered Accountants were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the
Corporation by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India for the Year 2015-16.

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India have appointed M/s. Mukeshkumar Jain & Co, Chartered



Accountants as Statutory Auditor of the Corporation for the financial year 2016-17 as well as 2017-
18.

As regards observations made by the Auditors in their Auditors Report, the Board has to state as
follows:

a) The balances of Banks, Loans and advances and other current assets have been confirmed
majorly. Other balances could not be sent/received back for confirmation due to administrative
and other constraints.

b) The Company has not reviewed the carrying value of Assets/Cash generating units for
impairment. This will be looked into and taken care of in the subsequent financial year.

c) The Company has not recognized Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) in the Financial Statements.
The same will be taken care of in the subsequent financial year.

d) The Company isin the process of making necessary provisions for eliminating the obsolete and
non existent fixed assets from the Financial Statements and the same will be taken care of in
the subsequent financial year.

As regards the significant matters highlighted by the C&AG, the Board has to state as follows:

a. The Company has a policy to deploy unutilized/unspent funds received from the Government
under various schemes in bank deposits and Inter-Corporate Deposits(ICDS) with Gujarat State
Financial Services (GSFS) and earn interest.

The Government of Gujarat (GOG) has issued G. R. No. PSE/102015/864281/A on 22nd
December, 2015 which gives directions to book liability for payment of interest received/accrued
on investment of Government Grants. However, G. R. issued by the GOG does not indicates
the period from which it is applicable. Hence we believe that it is applicable for the period 22-12-
2015 to 31-03-2016.

The above interest income of Rs. 49.75 crore is for the full period 01-04-2015 to 31-03-2016.
Hence liability for proportionate income received has to be booked for the period 22-12-2015 to
31-03-2016.

However, there are certain factors, which has to be considered which are as under:

1. Income tax which the Company is bearing for the interest income received and hence average
income tax borne by the Company due to such interestincome has to be deducted while booking
liability for payment of interest received/accrued.

2. Service cost which the Company is bearing which includes employees’ benefits expenses,
office expenses and other direct and indirect costs which has to be proportionately deducted
from the liability to be booked.

The above factors has to be considered while booking liability for payment of interest received/
accrued for which there is no specific guidelines in the G. R. and hence specific method has to be
derived for booking interest liability which requires board of directors approval as well as clarification
is required from Government of Gujarat.

Hence once the above clarification from GOG and requisite authorization from board of directors is
received we will make necessary rectification in the books of account from the financial year 2016-
17.



15.

16.

b. As regards second observation, it may be noted that the Cash Flow Statement was in fact
placed before the Board and same was approved by the Board of Directors, at the Meeting of
the Board of Directors of the Company held on 16th June, 2017 in which the financial statements
were approved.

INTERNAL AUDITORS:

M/s. Jaydev Parmar & Co., Chartered Accountants & M/s. Sunil Khengarji & Co., Chartered
Accountants were appointed as internal auditors of the Corporation for the year 2015-16.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

The Company has obtained Secretarial Audit Report from M/s K. A Shukla & Associates, Practicing
Company Secretaries for the year 2015-16.

As regards to observations made by the Secretarial Auditors in their Secretarial Audit Report, the
Board has to state as follows:

The Board would like to inform you that your Company had vide Letter No. SEC/ID/2016- 17/3433
dated 27th June, 2016 sent resumes of few individuals to the Government of Gujarat for appointment
as Independent Directors. Reminder letter no SEC/ID/2016- 17/4698 dated 7th September, 2016
was also sent for the same matter. Necessary orders/directions are awaited from the Government of
Gujarat. Upon appointment of Independent Directors by the Government of Gujarat, the Company
shall be fully compliant with the provisions of the constitution of the Board of Directors. Thereafter,
the Company shall also reconstitute the Audit Committee by inducting Independent Directors and
shall also constitute the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in due compliance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Necessary steps with regards to compliance of Corporate
Social Responsibility provisions are being taken. The Company will also take necessary steps to
make necessary appointments of Key Managerial Personnel including Company Secretary.

Being a Government Company, the Company makes payment of Director remuneration as per GR
of Government of Gujarat. The Company do keep and maintain the statutory register. The Company
had given Inter Corporate Deposit to Gujarat State Financial Services Limited, as per the GR of
Government of Gujarat and hence the same is falling within the purview of Section 186, however
Company has passed appropriate resolution as required under the Act from time to time.

As you are aware, the Company had convened Annual General Meeting on 30th September, 2015
which was adjourned in respect of agenda matter pertaining to approval of financial statements,
declaration of dividend as the Statutory Auditors were in the process of conducting the audit. The
Company has now duly obtained the Audited Statement of accounts and Auditorjis Report (together
with the comments of the C&AG) and the same will be placed before the members at the Adjourned
45th Annual General Meeting.

The Company is in the process of regularizing the filing of requisite forms/returns in respect of
matters/events pertaining to the financial year for which the Company was required to do filing.



18.

19.

20.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The details forming part of the extract of annual return in Form No. MGT-9 for the F.Y. 2015-16 is
enclosed herewith as a separate annexure.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

There are no Loans, Investments or Guarantees /Security given by the Company during the year
under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013; hence no particulars are required to be given.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the F.Y. 2015-16 the Corporation has not entered into any contracts or arrangements with
related parties. Therefore, the provisions of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 were not attracted.

Further, there are no materially significant related party transactions during the year under review
made by the Corporation with promoters, Directors or other designated persons which have a potential
conflict with the interest of the company at large.

The related party transactions as per AS-18 are disclosed in the notes forming part of financial
statements of the Company for the financial year 2015-16.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

At the Board meeting held on 27th October, 2016, the Board of Directors discussed about the Formation
of the CSR Committee comprising of:

. The Chairman

] The Managing Director

. Government Director

] Independent Director

] Director from Finance Department

The Company has already written to the Government of Gujarat to make appointment of Independent
Directors. This will facilitate proper constitution and functioning of various committees including the
CSR committee. Due to this, CSR policy could not be formalised by the Company.

At this juncture, the Company has been making various contribution/expenses in the nature of CSR
expenditure by way of charitable contribution till CSR is formalised by the Company.

The Company endeavour to spent at aleast 2% of the average net profit of last three financial years
towards charitable contribution in the nature of CSR expenditure.

This should be considered as sufficient explanation on the part of the Company within the meaning
of Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013.



21. DETAILS ON CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

(A) Conservation of energy

(i)  the steps taken or impact on conservation of The activities carried out by
energy the Company are not power intensive.
(i) the steps taken by the company for utilizing The Company is not utilizing alternate
alternate sources of energy sources of energy.
(iii) the capital investment on energy The cost of the energy is insignificant.

conservation equipments
(B) Technology absorption
(i) the efforts made towards technology

absorption

(i) the benefits derived like product improvement, The Company has not imported any
costreduction, product development or import technology during the year. Hence,
substitution there are no details required

under clause (i), (ii) and

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported
during the last three years reckoned from
the beginning of the financial year)
(a) the details of technology imported;
(b) the year of import;
(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed;
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption
has not taken place, and the reasons thereof;

and
(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and There are no expenditure incurred on
Development Research and Development

by the Company

(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of NIL
actual inflows during the year and
The Foreign Exchange outgo during the year NIL

in terms of actual outflows

22. VIGIL MECHANISM:

As the Company is neither listed Company nor falling in the criteria prescribed under rule 7 of Meetings
of Board and its Powers Rules, 2014, the vigil mechanism is not applicable to the Company.

23. REGULATORY ORDERS:

During the year there were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and Companyj:is operations in future.



25.

26.

27.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has in place an Anti Sexual Harassment measures in line with the requirements of
The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act,
2013. During the year, there were no complaints received under the said act.

ANALYSIS OF REMUNERATION:

Being not a Listed Company, disclosure regarding the ratio of the remuneration of each Director to
the median employeej:is remuneration and other details are not applicable to the Company.

DEPOSITS:

During the year under report, your Company has not accepted any deposits pursuant to Section 73
of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence further details are not required to be given.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record the valuable contribution and efforts made by
the employees. Your Directors express their gratitude to the Government of India and Government
of Gujarat, Bankers, Financial Institutions, Suppliers, Dealers, Purchasers, Statutory Auditors, Internal
Auditors, Cost Auditors, Secretarial Auditor, Solicitors and other consultants who have extended
their support and co-operation to the Corporation.

Your Directors also express their sincere thanks and appreciation to the Executives of the Corporation.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

Place : Gandhinagar

Date : 27-03-2018 Chairman Managing Director



ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Particulars required under the Companies (Disclosure of particulars in the Report of Board of
Director ) Rules 1988

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY :
(a) Energy Conservation measures taken :
Manufacturing Process standardised to reduce electricity consumption
(b)  Additional investment and proposal for reduction of consumption of energy.
NIL
(c) Impact of the above :
NA
(d) Total Energy Consumption and Energy Consumption per unit of production
NIL
B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION :
None.
C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO:
Total Foreign exchange used and earned.
(Rs.in Lacs)
2015-16 2014-15
(i)  CIF Value of imports - -
(i)  Expenditure in foreign currency - -

(i)  Foreign Exchange earned - -



COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION
143(6) (B) READ WITH SECTION 129 (4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF GUJARAT AGRO INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2016.

The preparation of financial statements of Gujarat Agro Industries Corporation Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2016 in accordance with financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the Company. The Statutory Auditors appointed
by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139 (5) of the Companies Act are
responsible for expressing opinion on these financial statements under Section 143 of the Act based
on independent audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143 (1) of
the Act. this is staed to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 16 June 2017.

[, on the behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted the a supplementary
audit under Section 143 (6) (B) of the Act of the financial statements of Gujarat Agro Industries
Corporation Limited, Gandhinagar for the year ended 31 March 2016. This supplementary audit has
been carried out independently without assess to the working papers of the Statutory Auditors and is
limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditors and Company personnel and a selective examination
of some of the accounting records. Based on my supplementary audit, | would like to highlight the
following significant matters under Section 143 (6)(b) of the Act which have come to my attention and
which in my view are necessary for enabling a better understanding of the financial statements and the
related Audit Report.

A. COMMENTS ON DISCLOSURE
Statement of Profit and Loss

Income
Other Income (Note No. 18)Rs. 59.59 Crore
1. The above includes interest earned by the Company on the funds received from Government for

variou schemens. The Government of Gujarat (GoG) issued (22 December 2015) directions to
book liability for payment of interest received / accrued on investment of Government grants.
The Company did not comply with the above directions.

The above material fact should have been suitably disclosed in the Notes Forming Part of Financial
Statements.

B. OTHER COMMENTS
Violation of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013

2. The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company under Section
134 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) on 16th June 2017. As per the Section 2 (40) of
Company Act 2013 financial statement includes a Balance Sheet, a Profit and Loss Account, a
Cash Flow Statement and a statement of change in equity, if applicable. It was noticed that Cash
flow Statement was neither submitted nor approved in the Board Resolution dated 16th JUne

2017.
For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India
Place : Ahmedabad (Gurveen Sidhu)
Dated : 19-01-18 Accountant General

(E & RSA), Gujarat




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Gujarat Agro Industries Corporation Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Gujarat Agro Industries Corporation Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2016, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accountings
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act and other applicable authoritative rponouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. Those Standards and pronouncements require that we compny with ethical requirement and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified audit opinion on the financial statements.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

(a) The balances of Trade receivables, Trade Payables, Long-term Borrowings, Deposit receivable /
payables, Long-term Inter-Corporate Deposits and Other loans and advances are subject to
Confirmation and reconciliations as more particularly described in note no. 23.11 of the financial
statement and hence impact, if any, of unreconciled amounts on the Statement of Profit and Loss
and on respective accounts are unascertained.

(b)  The Company has not conducted the test of impairment of assets and compiled the relevant information
as stated in note no. 8.4 of the financial statements. Consequently, it has not adjusted the carrying
value of the assets, if required, amount being unascertained. This constitutes a departure from
Accounting Standard-28 “Impairment of Assets”, as a consequence of which the impact, if any, on
the Carrying amount of Fixed Assets and Profit could not be ascertained.

(c) The Company has not recognized Deferred Tax Liabilities/Assets in the financial statements as stated
in note no. 23.7 of the financial statements. This constitutes a departure from Accounting Standard
22 *Accounting for taxes on income”, as a consequence of which the impact, if any, on the financial
statements could not be ascertained.

(d) The Company has identified fixed assets which are not in existence and obsolete amounting to Rs.
22,85,387 as stated in note no. 8.3 of the financial statements. However the Company has not
eliminated such fixed assets from the books of account. This constitutes a departure from Accounting
Standard 10 “Accounting for fixed assets” as a consequence of which the impact, if any, on the
Carrying amount of Fixed Assets and Statement of Profit and Loss could not be ascertained.

The cumulative impact of the matters narrated and described at points (a) to (d) above on the Financial
Statements for the year under review cannot be ascertained.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for
the effects of the matter described in basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph ,the aforesaid financial statements
give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31
March, 2016, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of matters

We draw attention to Note no. 5.1 of the financial statements which describes that the Company has not
collected information from the Suppliers covered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act and on the basis of such
checks of the books and recordeds of the Company as we considered appropriate and accordance
to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

Except for the effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified opinion paragraph, in
our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Being a Government Company, pursuant to the Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5th JUne
2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, provisions of sub-section
(2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable to the Company.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

“Annuexure B.”

The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith

are as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements (Refer Note no 23.1) to the financial statements).

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

3. As required by Section 143(5) of the Act, we have considered the direction and sub-directions issued
by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India. We give our report in the attached “Annexure C”.

For. C.R. SHAREDALAL & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS,
(Registration No.109943W)

PLACE: AHMEDABAD

DATE

: 16-06-2017

(J.K. Patel)
PARTNER
Membership No.047136



Annexure ‘A’ to Independent Auditors’ Report

[Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
of our report of even date]

1. (a) The Company is maintaining fixed assets register, however the same is not complete and
comprehensive in respect of quantitative details and specific identification of fixed assets.

(b) On the basis of information and explanation given to us, majority of Fixed Assets have been
physically verified by the management during the year under review. In our opinion, frequency
of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the operation of the Company.
However, in view of non maintenance of quantitative details in fixed assets register discrepancies,
if any, could not be ascertained.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties,as disclosed in not no. 8 on fixed assets to th financial
statements,are held in the Company.

2. The inventory has been physically verified by the management through a firm of Chartered
Accountants during the year. In our opinion the frequency of such verification is reasonable. As
explained to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification of inventory as
compared to the book record.

3. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,limited
liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Therefore the provisions of clause 3 (iiia) ,(iiib) and (iiic) of the said order are
not applicable to the Company.

4. The Company has not granted any loans or provided any gurantees or securities to the parties
covered under section 185 of the Companies Act,2013.In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of sections 186 of the
companies Act,2013 In respect of grant of loans,making investments and providing gurantees and
securities,as applicable.

5.  The Company has not accepted deposits from the public within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder.

6.  According to the information and explanation given to us the Company is not required to maintain
cost records in terms of sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

7. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the books of account, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Value Added
Tax, Wealth Tax, Custom duty, Excise duty, Service Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues
whichever is applicable during the year with the appropriate authorities and no undisputed
dues payable in respect of outstanding statutory dues were in arrears as at 31t March, 2016
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.



According to the information and explanations given to us as at 315t March,2016 there are no
amounts in respect of sales tax/ income tax/ custom duty/ wealth tax/ excise duty/ service tax
that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except
as stated below :

Particulars Financial year which | Forum where dispute is pending Amount
matter pertains (Rs.)

Value Added Tax | 1990-91 and 1991-92 Commercial Tax appellate Tribunal 2,72,000

Income Tax 2004-05 Hon’ble Gujarat High Court 93,56,000

Income Tax 1983-84 Income Tax appellate Tribunal 1,30,000

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The Company has not taken any loans from banks and finacial institutions hence the requirements
of clause (viii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments).The Company has not obtained any term loans during the year,hence the
requirements of clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the order regarding application of loan for the purpose
for which they have been otained does not arise.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company,carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in india,and accoding to the information
and explanation given to us we have neither come across any instance of a fraud by the company or
on the Company by its officer or employees,noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the management.

According to the information and explanations given by the management,The managerial
remunerations has been paid all provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandate by the
provisions of the section 197 read with schedule V of the Act.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi rules,2014 are not applicable to it;hence the
provisions of clause 3(xiii) of the order are not applicable to the company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of
sections 177 and section 188 of the Act the details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required under accounting standard(AS) 18,related party
disclosures specified under section 133 of the Act,Read with rule 7 of the companies (Accounts)
rules,2014.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year under revie. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the order are not applicable
to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,1934.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For, C.R. SHAREDALAL & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS,
(Registration No.109943W)

PLACE: AHMEDABAD
DATE : 28-12-2015 (J.K. Patel)

PARTNER
Membership No.047136
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Annexure ‘B’ to Independent Auditor’s Report

[Referred to Paragraph 2(f) under the heading of “Report on Other and Regulatory Requirements
report of oven date]

of our

Report of the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (j) of Sub-Section 2 of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Gujarat Agro Industries
Corporation Limited (“the Company”) as 31t March, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s managements is responsible for establishing and maintain internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAIl). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting
based on our audit. WE conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting )the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable on an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we company with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the adequately of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of Internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgments including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

WE believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our qualified audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purpose in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Acompany’s internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain in the maintenance



of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company’ (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with gerenrally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditure of the company are being made only in accordance with authorities of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect of the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, materials misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanation given to us, the following material weakness have been
identified as at 315 March, 2016.

1. The Company did not have on appropriate internal control system for timely reconciliation
and confirmation of Trade receivables, Trade Payable, Long-term Borrowings, Deposit
receivable / payable, Long-term Inter-Corporate Deposits and Other loans and advances,.
The unreconciled amounts could have a potential impact on the financial statements.

2. The Company did not have been appropriate internal control system for timely recording of
year end closing entries in the financial statements due to lack of timely information and
lack of qualified staff. This could potentially result in misstatement of financial statements,
delay in in submitting the financial statement to various statutory authorities and delay of
various legal compliances.

3. 3. The Company did not have an effective internal financial control with respect to maintaining
quantitative details in fixed asset register and also specific identification of the assets. This
further leads to non-identification of discrepancies between fixed assets register and physical
assets. This could potentially result in the Company materially misstating the fixed assets.

In our opinion, expert for the effects / possible effects of the material weakness described above on the
achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31°' March, 2016, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For, C.R. SHAREDALAL & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS,
(Registration No.109943W)
PLACE: AHMEDABAD
DATE :28-12-2015 (J.K. Patel)
PARTNER
Membership No.047136



Annexure: ‘C’

Audit Report of Gujarat Agro Industries Corporation Limited for the year 2015-16 pursuant to
directions under section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Directions for the year 2015-16

Sr. Directions Action taken Impact on the
No. Accounts and
Financial
Statements of
the Company
1 Whether the Company has claer title | In view of non-maintenance of | No Impact

/ lease deeds for freehold and | quantitative details in fixed assets
leasehold land respectively? If not | register information cannot be
please state the area of freehold and | furnished.

leasehold land for which title / lease
deeds are not available?

2 Whether thare are any cases of | As per information and Explanation | No Impact
waiver / write off of debts / loan / | given by Company that no such waiver
interest etc., if yeas, the reasons | has been made and no such instances
there fore and the amount involved. | found during the course of audit.

3 Whether proper records are | The Company maintains properrecord | No Impact
maintained for inventories lying with | of inventories lying with third parties.
third parties & assets received as gift/ | The Company has not received any
grants(s) from Govt. or other | gift/ grant(s) from Govt. or other

authorities authorities during the year under
review.
: ANNUAL REPORT-15-16 ¥ 20 |



Sub-Directions under section 143(5) of Companies Act , 2013 for the year 2015-16

Sr. Directions Action taken Impact on the
No. Accounts and
Financial
Statements of
the Company
A General
1. Whether the land owned by the| As explained to us, no such | No Impact
Company is encroached, under litigation, | instances of encroachment of
not put to use or declared surplus. Details | freehold land and freehold land
may be provided. under litigation are reported during
the year. However, freehold land not
put to use or declared surplus by
the management as on 31 March,
2016 is as per Annexure 1.
2. Whether Physical Verification and | Not Applicable Not Applicable
valuation of standing crops/trees was
done at the end of the Financial Year in
accordance with the standard industry
practices?
3. Whether the stock of seeds packing/ | Not Applicable Not Applicable
certification material and other items has
been taken on the basis of stock records
after adjustment of shortage/excess
found on physical verification and
whether due consideration has been
given for deterioration in the quantity of
old stocks which may result into over
valuation of stock?
4, Whether all the agriculture produces | According to the explanation | No Impact
procured are properly stored and | provided to us, all products are
adequately insured. If any insurance | properly stored and adequately
claims are rejected, the details may be | insured. No instances of rejection
reported. of insurance claims have been
observed.
5. Whether the Company has an effective | According to the information | No Impact
mechanism for disbursement of loans/ | provided to us the disbursement of
subsidies /agro inputs and agriculture | subsidies to beneficiaries are as per
mechanism to beneficiaries and recovery | the directions given by the
thereof (loans) along with interest, if any, [ Government.
from beneficiaries?
6. That grants/subsidies received for | Yes No Impact
implementing various schemes are
accounted for as per the accounting
standards and utilized for intended
purposes.




Directions

Action taken

Impact on the
Accounts and
Financial
Statements of
the Company

Whether the cost incurred on abandoned
projects has been written off?

As per the explanation given to us,
no such abandoned projects are
reported during the year.

Not Applicable

Agriculture Procurement

Examine and report the cases of levy of
penalty for mismatch of stock of food
grains with cash credit limit availed.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Examine and report the system for timely
lodging of claims (covering all cost
incidentals) in respect of delivery of food
grains against Central and State
Scheme.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Examine and report on the deficiencies
in the system for assessing the health of
stock and for valuation of damaged food
grains.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Examine and report the system of
reconciliation of amount recoverable/
payable, in respect of gunny bales, with
millers and other procuring agencies.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Examine the system of check the
authenticity of claims shown as
recoverable from FCl/State Govt.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Agro Based Industries

Report the cases of diversion of grants/
subsidies received from Central/State
Government or their agencies for
performing certain activities.

No such instances are observed
during the year under audit.

Not Applicable

Cases of wrong accounting of interest
earned on account of non utilization of
amount received for certain projects/
schemes may be reported.

No such instances are observed
during the year under audit.

Not Applicable

Examine pricing policy framed by the
Company to ensure that all cost
components are covered.

There is no documented policy for
pricing. However as explained to us,
the practice of the company for

No Impact




Sr. Directions Action taken Impact on the
No. Accounts and
Financial
Statements of
the Company
deciding price of the product is by | No Impact
calculating the projected cost which
is considered on the basis of
available information about various
elements of cost such as raw
material, labour overheads, etc.
After calculating the projected cost,
profit margin is added to the
projected cost and final selling price
is derived.
A. Report on the extent of utilization of plant | According to information and
& machinery and its obsolescence, if | explanation given to us, plant and
applicable. machinery are utilized to the extent
of less than 50% of installed capacity
Annexure -1
Sr. Place/ Location of Taluka District Area of Land | Survey | Status of Type Of Land
No. Land No. Land
1 Tragad Ahmedabad Ahmedabad | 2000Sq.mt. 102 Open Land | Non Agriculture
2 Bavla Bavla Ahmedabad | 17701 sq.mt. 1019 Open Land | Non Agriculture
3 Bavla Bavla Ahmedabad | 22460 sq.mt. 1021 Open Land | Non Agriculture
4 Beharampura Ahmedabad Ahmedabad | 20234 Sq. mt. | 101/p Open Land | Non Agriculture
Shahwadi 38/p
5 Chikali (Samroli) Chikhali Navsari 3290 807/p Open Land | Non Agriculture
6 Bavla Bavla Ahmedabad | 32881 Sq.mt. 1020 Open Land | Non Agriculture

PLACE: AHMEDABAD

DATE

: 16-06-2017

For, C.R. SHAREDALAL & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS,
(Registration No.109943W)

(J.K. Patel)
PARTNER
Membership No.047136



NOTE - - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Corporate Information

The Company is a Government Company incorporated under the Companies Act 1956 with a primary
objective of promoting agricultural activities and fosters development of agro industries in State of
Gujarat. Significant line of activities of the Company includes manufacturing of pesticides and dealing
with fertilizers. Moreover the Company acts as a facilitators and nodal agency for various agricultural
as well as non-agricultural schemes of Government of Gujarat and Government of India. The Company
has extended its operations in State of Gujarat through 18 Branch Centers at various District / Taluka
palces and around 1200 affiliated Retail Outlets. Corporate Identification Number (CIN) of the Company
is U91110GJ1969SGC001582.

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements :

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis in
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principal (GAAP), and comply with the Companies
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“ the Act”) read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. In applying the accounting policies, consideration
has been given to Prudence, Substance over Form and Materiality.

Use of estimates :

The preparation of financial statements requires the management of the company to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to the
contingent liability as at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of income and
expenses like useful lives of fixed assets, provision for taxation and provision of employee benefits,
etc., during the year. Management believes the estimates used in the preparation of the financial
statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results may vary from these estimates. The difference
between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known
or materialized.

Cash and Cash Equivalents :

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement include cash on hand, Cheques &
drafts on hand and balances with banks in current account and fixed deposits account (With original
maturity of 3 months or less).

Cash Flow Statement :

The Cash Flow statement has been prepared as per the indirect method set out in AS-3 as specified
under section 133 of the Companies Act,2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rule,2014.The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated based on the available information.

Tangible Fixed Assets :

Fixed assets are carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of fixed assets
includes purchase price, non refundable duties and taxes, interest on borrowings attributable to
acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use and other
incidental expenses incurred up to that date.



10.

Machinery spares which can be used only in connection with an item of fixed asset and whose use is
expected to be irregular are capitalised and depreciated over the useful life of the principal item of
the relevant assets.

Subsequent expenditure relating to fixed assets is capitalised only if such expenditure results in an
increase in the future benefits from such asset beyond its previously assessed standard of
performance.

Fixed assets retired from active use and held for sale are stated at the lower of their net book value
and net realisable value and are disclosed separately in the Balance Sheet under Other Current
Assets.

Capital Work-in-Progress :

Projects under which assets are not ready for their intended use and other capital work-in-progress
are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable interest and
shown under the head Capital Work-in-Progress.

Intangible Assets :

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. The cost of an intangible asset
comprises its purchase price, including any import duties and other taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities), and any directly attributable expenditure on
making the asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates. Subsequent
expenditure on an intangible asset after its purchase / completion is recognised as an expense when
incurred unless it is probable that such expenditure will enable the asset to generate future economic
benefits in excess of its originally assessed standards of performance and such expenditure can be
measured and attributed to the asset reliably, in which case such expenditure is added to the cost of
the asset.

Investments :

(1) Investments that are readily realizable and are intended to be held for not more than one
year from the date on which investments are made, are classified as current Investments. All
other investments are classified as long term investments.

(2) Non-Current investments are stated individually at cost less provision for diminution other than
temporary, in the value of such investments.

(3) Current investments are stated individually, at the lower of cost and fair value.
(4) The cost of investments includes acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.
Inventories :

Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase and other cost incurred in bringing them to their
respective present location and condition.

Inventories are valued as under:
(1) Raw Material — At cost or net realizable value whichever is lower on FIFO basis.

(2) Finished Goods — At the aggregate of weighted average material cost and direct applicable
standard overheads or net realizable value whichever is lower.
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12.

13.

14.

(3) Trading Goods — At cost or net realizable value whichever is lower on FIFO basis.

(4) Stores, Spares and Packing Material - At cost or net realizable value whichever is lower on
FIFO basis.

Work-in-progress includes appropriate proportion of overheads and excise duty wherever applicable.
Trade Receivables & Advances :

Trade Receivables and Advances are stated at expected realizable value. Expected realizable value
is determined by the management on the basis of creditworthiness and past experiences. Provisions
for trade receivables and advances outstanding for a period of more than 3 years are made considering
it to be reasonably unexpected for realisation.

Revenue Recognition :
a) Sale of goods :

Sales are recognised, net of returns, trade discounts, quantity discounts and discount on
fertilizers on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer, which generally
coincides with the delivery of goods to customers. Sales include excise duty but exclude value
added tax.

b) Income from services :

Revenues from contracts priced on a time and material basis are recognised when services
are rendered and related costs are incurred.

c) Other Income:

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and rate applicable and accounted on accrual basis. Dividend income is accounted
for when the right to receive is established.

Government Grants and Subsidies:

Government grant is recognized where there is a reasonable assurance that the conditions attached
to them will be complied with.

Government grant received against the development of specific infrastructure project is credited to
the respective Project Grant Account under Reserve and surplus. The depreciation charged on the
basis of useful life of the created assets is also charged to the specific grant account by reducing the
value of assets in fixed assets block.

Subsidy received in cases the Corporation is acting as a Nodal Agency are accounted for as liabilities
as and when received and any amount paid to the beneficiaries against such subsidy are debited to
respective subsidy account. In case subsidies are paid in advance same are classified as receivable
in financial statements.

Expenses :

Material known liabilities are provided for on the basis of available information/estimates. All major
items of expenses are accounted for on accrual/pro-rata basis and necessary provisions for the
same are made.
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16.

Depreciation and Amortisation :

Tangible Assets

Depreciation has been provided on straight line method on the basis of estimated useful life
of assets as prescribed in schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation on all fixed assets of the Corporation covering plant and machinery, vehicles,
office equipments, furniture and fixtures and all other assets are provided in books up to
95% of the cost of the assets except in case where an asset does not retain realisable
value.

Depreciation on addition/disposal to fixed assets are provided on pro-rata basis on number
of days for which the asset is used by the company.

Assets costing upto Rs. 5,000/- are depreciated fully in the year of purchase.

Depreciation in relation to Fixed Assets acquired out of specific grant is charged to respective
grants in the Balance Sheet.

Intangible Assets

Computer software is amortised over a period of 10 years

Employee Benefits :

Employee benefits include provident fund, superannuation fund, gratuity fund, compensated absences,
long service awards and post-employment medical benefits, if any.

a)

b)

Defined Contribution Plans :

The Company’s contribution to provident fund and superannuation fund are considered as
defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense to the Statement of Profit and Loss,
as they fall due based on the amount of contribution required to be made.

Defined Benefit Plans :

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund, Leave salary encashment and post-
Employment medical benefits, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected
Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance Sheet date.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which they occur. Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits
are already vested and otherwise is amortised on a straight-line basis over the average period
until the benefits become vested. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance
Sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised
past service cost, as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this
calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and
reductions in future contributions to the schemes.

Short-term employee benefits :

Short-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in
the Statement of profit and loss for the year in which the related service is rendered.



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

d) Long-term employee benefits :

Post employment and other long term employee benefits are recognized as expense in the
Statement of profit and loss for the year in which employees have rendered services. The
company also provides for post employment benefits in form of Gratuity and Leave encashment.
Provision for such benefits is made in books of accounts on the basis of valuation as at the
balance sheet date, made by independent actuaries. Actuarial gains / losses are recognised in
full in the statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing Costs :

Borrowing costs includes interest and amortisation of ancillary costs incurred. Costs in connection
with the borrowing of funds to the extent not directly related to the acquisition of qualifying assets are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the loan. Borrowing costs, allocated to
and utilised for qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of activities relating
to construction / development of the qualifying asset upto the date of capitalisation of such asset is
added to the cost of the assets. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active development activity on the
qualifying assets is interrupted.

Leases :

Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially
vest with the lessor are recognised as operating leases. Lease rentals under operating leases are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis.

Taxes on Income :

Provision for Current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the provisions
of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Earnings per Share :

For the purpose of calculating earnings per share the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity share holder divided by the weighted average number of shares outstanding at the end of the
year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity share holder and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

The weighted average number is arrived at after taking into consideration the bonus issue, right
issue, buyback etc. if any during the year.

Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets :

Provisions are recognized when there is present obligation as a result of past events that probably
require an outflow of resources and reliable estimates can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is possible obligation or a present obligation
that may but probably will not require an outflow of resources. The company does not recognize the
contingent liability but disclose the same in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent asset
neither recognize nor disclosed in the financial statement.



23.

24.

Segment Reporting :

The Corporation’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the
nature of products and services provided. Majority of the Corporation’s products are sold within India
and hence geographical segment is not identified.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the
Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been
identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.

Inter-segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily determined
based on market / fair value factors.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are not
allocable to segments on reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated revenue / expenses
/ assets / liabilities”.

Service Tax Input Credit :

Service tax input credit is accounted for in the books in the period in which the underlying service
received is accounted and when there is no uncertainty in availing / utilizing the credits.

Events occurring after the Balance Sheet Date :

Material adjusting events (that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the balance sheet date)
occurring after the balance sheet date are recognized in the financial statements. Non adjusting
events (that are indicative of conditions that arose subsequent to the balance sheet date) occurring
after the balance sheet date that represent material change and commitment affecting the financial
position are disclosed in the reports of the Board of Directors.



: GUJARAT AGRO INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LTD.

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2016

Amount in Rs.

PARTICULARS NOTE AS AT 31ST AS AT 31ST
NO MARCH 2016| MARCH 2015
A EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share Holders’ Funds
Share Capital 1 8,08,25,000 8,08,25,000
Reserves and Surplus 2 1,31,42,96,665 1,02,02,38,844
1,39,51,21,665 1,10,10,63,844
Non-Current Liabilities
Long-Term Borrowings 3 20,00,00,000 20,00,00,000
Long-Term Provisions 4 - 44,08,995
20,00,00,000 20,44,08,995
Current Liabilities
Short-Term Borrowings - -
Trade Payables 5 85,42,93,718 39,07,72,640
Other Current Liabilities 6 6,52,26,57,921 7,02,61,66,203
Short-Term Provisions 7 4,65,94,657 1,30,15,089
7,42,35,46,295 7,42,99,53,931
TOTAL 9,01,86,67,961 8,73,54,26,771
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Fixed Assets 8
(i) Tangible Assets 34,82,18,101 36,62,63,376
(i) Intangible Assets 17,15,733 1,60,703
(iii) Capital Work-in-progress 11,83,08,718 9,65,82,507
46,82,42,552 46,30,06,586
Non-Current Investments 9 1,21,21,010 1,21,21,010
Long-Term Loans and Advances 10 26,68,25,575 23,83,94,406
Other Non-Current assets 11 1,56,45,903 2,22,37,354
28,24,71,478 27,27,52,770
Current Assets
Inventories 12 1,22,51,48,295 42,99,34,180
Trade Receivables 13 34,93,18,162 19,80,09,712
Cash and Bank Balances 14 3,41,42,60,835 4,51,23,70,397
Short-Term Loans and Advances 15 3,05,29,84,049 2,68,76,07,950
Other Current Assets 16 21,41,21,580 17,17,45,177
8,25,58,32,921 7,99,96,67,416
TOTAL 9,01,86,67,961 8,73,54,26,771
Significant Accounting Policies 1 - 0
The accompanying notes 1 to 23 are integral part of financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For C R Sharedalal & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 109943W

J.K.Patel
Partner
M. No.: 047136

Place : AHMEDABAD
Date : June 16, 2017

Chairman

(DIN)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Managing Director

(DIN)

Place : GANDHINAGAR
Date : June 16, 2017

' ANNUAL REPORT-15-16



STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016

Amount in Rs.

PARTICULARS NOTE AS AT 31ST AS AT 31ST
NO MARCH 2015 MARCH 2014
INCOME
Gross Revenue from Operations 17 3,83,20,09,249 3,15,42,82,854
Less: Excise Duty (1,24,53,808) (1,18,80,227)
Net Revenue from Operations 3,81,95,55,441 3,14,24,02,627
Other Income 18 59,59,12,078 27,00,36,605
Total Income [A] 4,41,54,67,520 3,41,24,39,232
Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed 19A 5,23,42,274 6,48,84,708
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 19B 4,47,24,85,371 3,28,63,52,722
Changes in Inventories of
Finished Goods & Stock-in-Trade 19C (79,48,38,143) (32,91,94,498)
Employee Benefits Expense 20 11,42,12,613 11,70,05,246
Finance Cost 21 1,43,94,660 94,82,543
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 8,15,95,268 47,10,024
Other Expenses 22 8,06,29,501 7,41,21,324
Total Expenses [B] 3,94,08,21,544 3,22,73,62,069
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FOR THE YEAR [A-B] 47,46,45,976 18,50,77,162
Extraordinary ltems - 20,24,482
Profit Before Tax for the year 47,46,45,976 18,30,52,680
Tax Expenses
Current Income Tax 17,57,48,524 6,55,00,000
(Excess)/Short Provision of Income Tax
for earlier years (31,68,953)
PROFIT AFTER TAX FOR THE YEAR 30,20,66,405 11,75,52,680
Earning per Equity Share
(Face value of ‘100 per Share)
Basic 373.73 145.44
Diluted 373.73 145.44
Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes 1 to 23 are integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For C R Sharedalal & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 109943W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

J.K.Patel Chairman Managing Director
Partner (DIN) (DIN)
M. No.: 047136
Place : AHMEDABAD Place : GANDHINAGAR
Date : June 16, 2017 Date : June 16, 2017
- ANNUAL REPORT-15-16 ¥ 31}



CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016
Amount in Rs.

PARTICULARS FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR
ENDED ON 31st ENDED ON 31st
MARCH 2016 MARCH 2015

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit Before Tax 47,46,45,976 18,30,52,681

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and Amortisation 15,95,268 47,10,024

Profit on Sale of Assets (8,28,635)

Loss on Sale of Assets 47,200 -

Finance Costs 1,43,94,660 94,82,543

Interest Income (58,18,96,739) (22,22,19,096)

Dividend Income (83,400) (83,400)

Rental Income from Operating Leases (1,60,27,391) (57,51,510)

Liabilities / Provisions no longer required,

Written Back (8,97,862) (12,54,649)

Computer Software W/off - 20,24,482

Provision for Doubtful Trade and Other

Receivables Loans and Advances 36,33,061 31,74,877

Sundry Credit Balances Written Back - (1,75,225)

Expenses Payable 1,16,13,106 97,86,145
(51,84,50,732) (20,08,05,809)

Operating Profit/(Loss) Before Working Capital Changes

Changes in Working Capital:

Adj. for (Increase)/Decrease in Operating Assets:
Inventories

Trade Receivables

Short-Term Loans and Advances

(4,38,04,756)

(79,52,14,116)
(15,40,43,649)
(36,53,76,099)

(1,72,53,127)

(32,11,63,063)
(3,07,08,456)
(1,15,97,11,304)

Long-Term Loans and Advances (2,84,31,169) 17,03,43,352
Other Current Assets (1,66,09,85,238) (2,99,53,851)
Other Non-Current Assets 65,91,451 5,03,39,124

Adj. for increase/(Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:

(2,99,74,58,820)

(1,32,08,54,198)

Trade Payables (46,35,21,078) 17,27,71,955
Other Current Liabilities 52,32,33,001 5,12,16,95,504
Short-Term Provisions 45,42,976 61,28,404
Long-Term Provisions 44,08,995 44,08,995

6,86,63,893 5,30,50,04,859
Cash Generated from Operations (3,10,99,27,469) 3,96,68,97,533
Direct Taxes paid (Net of refunds) (18,76,25,980) (5,86,13,315)
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Operating Activities (A) (3,24,75,53,449) 3,90,82,84,218

' ANNUAL REPORT-15-16 -m



CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2015

Amount in Rs.

PARTICULARS

FOR THE YEAR

ENDED ON 31st
MARCH 2016

FOR THE YEAR

ENDED ON 31st
MARCH 2015

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets

Capital Grant received for Fixed Asset

Interest Received

Dividend Received

Rental Income from Operating Leases

Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Investing Activities (B)

C. | Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net increase / (decrease) in Working Capital borrowings
Proposed Dividend

Dividend Distribution Tax

Finance Cost

Net Cash Flow from / (used in) Financing Activities (C)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents

with the Balance Sheet:

Cash on hand

Cheques and Drafts on hand 21,08,88,083
Balances with Banks

in Current Accounts

in Deposit Accounts

Significant Accounting Policies 1

Capital Expenditure on Fixed Assets including Capital Advances

(2,87,96,499)

(6,54,86,087)

Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year comprised of

10,09,460 -
2,34,56,561 6,60,12,870
35,51,17,150 13,38,81,683
83,400 83,400
1,60,27,391 57,51,510
36,68,97,463 14,02,43,376
- 80,82,500
(16,16,294) 32,32,319
(1,43,94,660) (94,82,543)
(1,60,10,954) 18,32,275
(2,89,66,66,939) 4,05,03,59,869
4,42,22,24,869 37,18,65,000
1,52,55,57,930 4,42,22,24,869
5,73,890 3,54,371
3,52,67,60,970
68,17,63,691 76,18,04,528
63,23,32,265 13,33,05,000
1,52,55,57,930 4,42,22,24,869

The accompanying notes 1 to 23 are integral part of financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For C R Sharedalal & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 109943W

J.K.Patel Chairman Managing Director
Partner (DIN) (DIN)
M. No.: 047136
Place : AHMEDABAD Place : GANDHINAGAR
Date : June 16, 2017 Date : June 16, 2017
- ANNUAL REPORT-15-16 ¥ 33}

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors




NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2016

1 SHARE CAPITAL

Amount in Rs.

PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH 31, 2016 AS AT MARCH 31, 2015
Number of Rs. Number of Rs.
shares shares
(@) Authorised
EQUITY SHARES OF Rs. 100/- EACH 20,00,000 20,00,00,000 20,00,000 | 20,00,00,000
20,00,000 20,00,00,000 20,00,000 | 20,00,00,000
(b) Issued, subscried and fully paid up
EQUITY SHARES OF Rs. 100/- EACH 8,08,250 8,08,25,000 8,08,250 8,08,25,000
TOTAL 8,08,250 8,08,25,000 8,08,250 8,08,25,000

1.1 Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH 31, 2016 AS AT MARCH 31, 2015
Number of Rs. Number of Rs.
shares shares
Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning
of the year 8,08,250 8,08,25,000 8,08,250 8,08,25,000
Add: Issued during the year - - - -
Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the year 8,08,250 8,08,25,000 8,08,250 8,08,25,000

1.2 The details of shareholders holding more than 5% share in the company

Name of shareholder AS AT MARCH 31, 2016 AS AT MARCH 31, 2015
No. of shares % held | No. of shares % held
Equity Share of Rs.100/- each fully paid
Governor of Gujarat 8,08,250 100.00% 8,08,250 100.00%
(Including nominees)
TOTAL 8,08,250 100.00% 8,08,250 100.00%

1.3 Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares:

The Company has only one class of equity share having a par value or Rs.100/- per share. Each holder of
equity share is entitled for one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividend in indian rupees. The
dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of share holders in the ensuing general
meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets
of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number
of equity shares held by the shareholders The details of shareholders holding more than 5% share in the
company Name of shareholder.



2 Reserves and surplus
Amount in Rs.

PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31, 2016 31, 2015
Capital Reserves (Refer Note No.2.1 below)
Opening Balance 52,67,22,382 47,97,92,674
Add : Additions during the year 2,34,56,561 6,60,12,870
Less : Utilised/Transferred during the year (2,17,37,241) (1,90,83,162)
Total [A] 52,84,41,702 52,67,22,382
Surplus/(Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance 49,35,16,462 38,56,62,306
Add : Profit/(Loss) for the year 30,20,66,405 11,75,52,680
Less : Appropriations for
Proposed Equity Dividend (80,82,500) (80,82,500)
Tax on Equity Dividend (16,45,406) (16,16,025)
Total [B] 78,58,54,962 49,35,16,462
Total [A] + [B] 1,31,42,96,664 1,02,02,38,844




Note 2.1 Reserves and surplus

Amount in Rs.

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST AS AT 31ST
MARCH 2016 MARCH 2015

RESERVES AND SURPLUS

[Including amounts received under Central/State

Govt.Grant for purchase of specific assets, net ofdepreciation]
(i) Capital Reserve

(as per last Balance sheet) 7,05,70,436 7,05,70,436
(i Capital Grant for A.S.C 3,45,000 3,45,000
(iiy  Capital Reserve on 94,416 94,416
(iv)  Capital Grant from Govt.

C.S.Deesa 3,86,008 3,86,008
(v)  Capital Grant for Onion

Meda 1,00,474

Less: Deduction on account of depreciation 1,00,474
(vi)  Capital Grant for Computers-

AEZ 37,481 85,815

Less: Deduction on account of depreciation - 37,481 48,333 37,481
(vi)  Capital Grant for Furniture-

Agri & Horti. Export 1,22,611 1,55,326

Less: Deduction on account of depreciation (82,715) 89,896 32,715 1,22,611
(viii) ~ Capital Grant for Irradiation

Plant-Bavla 17,08,07,946 14,80,57,482

Add: During the year - 2,93,57,742

Less: Deduction on account of depreciation (97,78,683) 16,10,29,264 66,07,277 |17,08,07,946
(ix)  Capital Grant for Tomato

Cluster Plant-Bavla 3,56,340 9,12,411

Less: Deduction on account of depreciation (5,567) 3,50,773 5,56,071 3,56,340
(x)  Capital Grant for Banana

Pack House 5,23,06,464 5,52,27,435

Less: Deduction on account of depreciation (33,04,011) 4,90,02,453 29,20,971 | 5,23,06,464
(xi)  Capital Grant for Integrated Pack House-Naroda 4,98,66,077 5,39,91,089

Less: Deduction on account of depreciation (37,42,223) 4,61,23,854 41,25,012 | 4,98,66,077
(xi)  Capital Grant for Centre for Perishable Cargo-Naroda 4,03,73,903 4,32,35,172

Less: Deduction on account of depreciation (30,10,476) 3,73,63,427 28,61,269 | 4,03,73,903
(xiii)  Capital Grant for Cold Storage-Mahuva 4,02,77,874 4,15,51,728

Less: Deduction on account of depreciation (12,73,854) 3,90,04,020 12,73,854 | 4,02,77,874
(xiv)  Capital Grant for Modern Potato Cold Storage-Deesa 6,15,42,291 5,53,35,512

Add: During the year 1,09,38,203 7,24,80,494 62,06,779 | 6,15,42,291
(xv)  Capital Grant for Poha Project 3,27,37,350 22,89,001

Add: During the year 1,25,18,358 4,52,55,708 | 3,04,48,349 | 3,27,37,350
(xvi)  Capital Grant for Liquid Bio-Fertilisers Unit-Naroda 67,83,849 73,11,150

Add: During the year - -

Less: Deduction on account of depreciation (5,27,302) 62,56,547 5,27,302 67,83,849
(xvii) Capital Grant for Computer (Agri. & Hort.) 55,804 64,859

Less: Deduction on account of depreciation (9,055) 46,749 9,055 55,804
(xviii) Capital Grant for Computer (NMFP) 58,531 79,361

Less: Deduction on account of depreciation (53,356) 5175 20,829 58,531

TOTAL 52,84,41,702 52,67,22,382




3 Long-Term Borrowings
Amount in Rs.

PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH| AS AT MARCH

31, 2016 31, 2015
Inter Corporate Deposits (Unsecured)
Gujarat Mineral Development Corporation 20,00,00,000 20,00,00,000
(Refer to Note No. 10.2)
TOTAL 20,00,00,000 20,00,00,000

4 Long-Term Provisions
Amount in Rs

PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH| AS AT MARCH

31, 2016 31, 2015
Provision for Employees Benefits
- Provision for Gratuity - 21,35,670
- Provision for Leave Encashment - 22,73,325
TOTAL - 44,08,995

5 Trade Payables
Amount in Rs

PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH| AS AT MARCH

31, 2016 31, 2015
Trade Payables 85,42,92,718 39,07,72,640
TOTAL 85,42,92,718 39,07,72,640

The company has not collected / maintained information / records regarding particulars of entities
covered under Micro, Small & Medium Enterprise Development Act 2006. Therefore information as
per provisions of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 is not furnished.




Other Current Liabilities
Amount in Rs

PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31, 2016 31, 2015
(a)  Statutory remittances 47,26,168 52,32,430
(b)  Contractually reimbursable expenses 53,346 3,29,059
()  Trade/Security deposits (Unsecured) - -
- Agro Business Centres 45,19,41,442 23,55,95,317
- Others 10,03,25,629 10,16,80,852
(d)  Advances from customers 5,72,61,364 5,52,90,330
(e) Subsidy Payable 5,83,54,00,255 6,56,28,21,385
() Payable to Employees (6th Pay commission arrears) 35,22,841 97,58,129
(g)  Supervision Charges Payable 1,13,50,964 1,09,60,999
(h)  Expenses Payable 1,16,13,106 97,86,145
(i) Other Liabilities 2,70,36,373 2,33,96,738
@) Proposed Dividend Year (14-15) 80,82,500 80,82,500
(k)  Tax on Proposed Dividend (14-15) 16,16,025 16,16,025
)] Tax on Proposed Dividend (13-14) - 16,16,294
(m) Proposed Dividend Year (15-16) 80,82,500 -
(n)  Tax on Proposed Dividend (15-16) 16,45,406 -
TOTAL 6,52,26,57,921 7,02,61,66,202
Short-Term Provisions
Amount in Rs
PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31, 2016 31, 2015
Provision for Income Tax (Net of Advance Tax) 3,81,22,544 68,86,685
Provision for Gratuity 55,87,947 61,28,404
Provision for Leave Liability 28,84,166 -
TOTAL 4,65,94,657 1,30,15,089




GUJARAT AGRO INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LTD.
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8.1 FIXED ASSETS - NOTES

Amount in Rs.

PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31, 2016 31, 2015
Depreciation for the year 2,33,32,509 2,37,93,186
Less: Amt.transfer to specific reserve account
Capital Grant for Computer-AEZ - (48,333)
Capital Grant for furniture (32,715) (32,715)
Capital Grant for IPH Naroda (37,42,223) (41,25,012)
Capital Grant for Tomato Cluster Bavla (5,567) (5,56,071)
Capital Grant for Irradiation plant Bavla (97,78,683) (66,07,277)
Capital Grant for Banana Pack House (33,04,011) (29,20,971)
Capital Grant for Centre for Perishable Cargo (30,10,476) (28,61,269)
Capital Grant for Liquid Bio- fertilizer Naroda (5,27,302) (5,27,302)
Capital Grant for onion meda - (1,00,474)
Capital Grant for Computer (Agri & Hort) (9,055) (9,055)
Capital Grant for Computer (NMFP) (53,356) (20,829)
Capital Grant for Cold Storage (12,73,854) (12,73,854)
(2,17,37,241) (1,90,83,162)
Net Balance charged to Profit & Loss Account 15,95,268 47,10,024

8.2

8.3

8.4

Building Bore Road

The block of fixed assets as shown in Note No. 8 includes property situated at Agro Service Centre
- Gondal amounting to ‘4,86,000 under the head “Building Bore Road”. Some part of the said property
is still under the possession of Indian Oil Corporation (IOC).

The corporation is claiming rentals of ‘32,88,000 from IOC with regard to possession of this property
& other property which had been handed over to the corporation. The lease rentals will be accounted
for as & when settled.

Physical verification of Fixed Assets

Majority of the fixed assets have been physically verified by the Management through a firm of
Chartered Accountants during the year. In the year 2011-12 Physical verification of fixed assets was
awarded to the external Chartered Accountants firm by the management and report of which was
received by the Management. Based on such report an Asset Management Committee was
constituted to examine the findings of the verification report and make recommendations to the
Management to take further actions. According to the report of external Chartered Accountants
block of assets comprised of certain assets not found to be in existence or considered obsolete.
However the management has not given effect in the financial statements to such findings for the
reason of further analysis to be made by the Asset Management Committee. Amount of assets
considered to be not in existence and obsolete is 22,85,387 for which appropriate provisions for
diminution in values are require to be made. Committee has also been entrusted to update the
Fixed Assets Register as the register maintained by the Corporation does not adequately present all
the facts and figures.

Impairment of Assets

The Carrying value of Assets / Cash generating units as on March 31, 2016 are not reviewed for
impairment. Hence it is not possible to ascertain the effect of the same in the financial statements.



9  Non-Current Investments
Amount in Rs
PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31, 2016 31, 2015
Unquoted Investments other than trade Investments
(i) 12,00,000 (Previous Year 12,00,000)
Equity shares of Gujarat Oleochem Ltd.
(Rs.10/- each fully paid) 1,20,00,000 1,20,00,000
(i) 10,45,100 (Previous Year 10,45,100)
Equity shares of National Multi Commodity Exchange of
India Ltd. (Rs.10/- each fully paid) 1,04,51,000 1,04,51,000
(iii) 1,66,800 (Previous Year 1,66,800)
Equity shares of Gujarat Green Revolution Co. Ltd.
(Rs.10/- each fully paid) 16,68,000 16,68,000
(iv) 120000 (P.Y. 120000) Equity shares of Gujarat Leather
Industries Ltd. (Rs.10/- each fully paid) 12,00,000 12,00,000
(v) 201 (Previous Year 201) Equity shares of Gujarat State
Co-operative Agricultural & Rural Development Bank Ltd.
(Rs.10/- each fully paid) 2,010 2,010
Total 2,53,21,010 2,53,21,010
Less : Provision for diminution in value of investment 1,32,00,000 1,32,00,000
Total 1,21,21,010 1,21,21,010
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 2,53,21,010 2,53,21,010
Aggregate provision for Diminution in Value of Investments 1,32,00,000 1,32,00,000

9.1

Provision has been made for diminution in value amounting to Rs.1,32,00,000 of non-current
investments in respect of Gujarat Oleo Chem Ltd. Rs.1,20,00,000 and Gujarat Leather Industries

Ltd. “12,00,000.



GUJARAT AGRO INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LTD.

10 Long-Term Loans and Advances
Amount in Rs
PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31, 2016 31,2015
(a) Capital Advances - Unsecured considered good 62,87,353 62,87,353
Refer Note No.10.1)
(b) Inter Corporate Deposits - Unsecured
Gujarat Dairy Development Corporation (Refer Note No.10.2) 20,00,00,000 20,00,00,000
Gujarat State Financial Services - -
20,00,00,000 20,00,00,000
(c) Security Deposits
Unsecured Considered Good 1,57,16,925 1,07,55,390
Doubtful 13,50,000 13,50,000
1,70,66,925 1,21,05,390
(Less): Provision for Doubtful Deposits (13,50,000) (13,50,000)
1,57,16,925 1,07,55,390
(d) Loans and Advances to Employees
Secured Considered Good 49,36,188 48.60,152
Unsecured Considered Good 10,491 2,610
Doubtful 36,174 36,175
49,82,853 48,98,937
(Less): Provision for Doubtful Deposits (36,174) (36,175)
49,46,679 48,62,762
(e) Balances with Government Authorities
Unsecured Considered Good
VAT Credit Receivable 34,23,713 32,45,641
(f) Advance against Goods
Unsecured Considered Good 70,933 9,07,354
Doubtful 12,38,207 12,38,207
13,09,141 21,45,561
Less: Provision (12,38,207) (12,38,207)
70,933 9,07,354
(g) Other Loans and Advances (Refer Note No0.10.3)
Doubtful 50,13,171 50,13,171
Less: Provision for Other Advances (50,13,171) (50,13,171)
(h) Other Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be
received: (Refer Note No.10.4)
Unsecured considered good 3,37,52,296 1,10,42,535
Doubtful 67,80,144 67,80,144
4,05,32,440 1,78,22,678
Less: Provision (67,80,144) (67,80,144)
3,37,562,296 1,10,42,535
(i)  Advance Income Tax (Net of Provision for Taxation) 19,86,106 8,04,791
() Income Tax Refund Receivable (Refer Note No.10.5) 1,03,28,162 1,65,45,169
Less: Provision for Refund of Income Tax (96,86,592) (1,60,56,586)
6.41,570 4,88,583
Total 26,68,25,575 23,83,94,408
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10.2

10.2.1

10.2.2

10.2.3

10.2.4

Capital advances

Capital advances include the amount of Rs.2,87,000 being the amount paid to Ahmedabad Mu-
nicipal Corporation in the year 1972 for purchase of land for compost manure plant. The said land
had already been handed over to the corporation by Ahmedabad Municipal Corporation and is
presently under the possession of the corporation. However the sale deed in respect of the same
has not yet been executed by the Ahmedabad Municipal Corporation in favour of the Corporation.

Inter Corporate Deposits(ICD) from Gujarat Mineral Development Corporation (GMDC) :

As per the directives of the Govt. of Gujarat Finance Dept. vide their letter No. JNV/1099/Court/6/
A dated 06/08/1999 and 13/08/1999 the Corporation has entered into an arrangement whereby
Gujarat Mineral Development Corporation (GMDC) had placed an ICD amounting to Rs.
20,00,00,000 with Gujarat Agro Industries Corporation Ltd. (GAICL). In turn GAICL had released
Rs. 20,00,00,000 to Gujarat Dairy Development Corporation (GDDC) (which was facing BIFR
proceedings) on the following terms and conditions:

(a) This arrangement was for one year only. It was anticipated that GDDC would sell off its
assets and repay this amount to GAICL within 12 months and in turn GAICL would release
an ICD to GMDC immediately.

(b) The rate of interest was to be determined and regulated as per Finance Department circular
no. PLA/1094/3088/KH dated 26/07/1995.

(c) Failure to the above arrangements especially with regard to repayment of principal and
interest the Government of Gujarat (GoG) agreed to repay principal and interest amount to
GMDC.

(d) GAICL would finalize mode of payment terms and condition etc. for onward releasing of Rs.
2000 Lakhs to GDDC at the same terms mentioned in point (a) & (b) above mainly to meet
with the expenditure towards VRS to its employees.

The above arrangement was also approved by the Board of Directors in its Meeting held on 03/08/
1999 and consequently the money was received from GMDC on 07/08/1999 and was released to
GDDC on the same date.

Subsequent to this the money was not received back within one year as stipulated. The assets and
liabilities of GDDC were taken over by the Govt. of Gujarat in terms of GR No. DDC/1304/2775/
5.2. dated 03/07/2007 and the Govt. of Gujarat undertook to repay all present and future financial
and legal liabilities of GDDC in terms of the BIFR order dated 14/01/2003 and 07/08/2006.

Since then GAICL has been pursuing the matter with the Govt. of Gujarat for its settlement. On 11/
08/2008 in a letter addressed to GMDC the Govt. of Gujarat has informed GMDC to make full
provision for outstanding principal and interest as per the Accounting Standards prescribed by the
Institute of Chartered Accounts of India. The letter also stated that Government of Gujarat would
consider to repay the dues of GMDC on realization of sale proceeds of the land as and when
possible. Based on the same GMDC has made full provision for outstanding amount and interest
in its Books of Accounts.

In view of above the management does not find it necessary to make provision for ICD given to the
GDDC as repayment of the same is liability of Government of Gujarat and more particularly liability
of Corporation for repayment of equivalent amount of ICD to GMDC is dependent upon receipt of
money from GDDC. The management also found it necessary to refrain from making provision for
interest receivable as well as payable for respective ICDs in terms of stated facts and in line with
legal opinion received from law expert.



10.4
10.4.1

10.4.2

10.5

ICD given to GDDC is exceeding the limit specified in section 186 of the Companies Act 2013 and
authorisation for the same in accordance with the provisions of section 186 is pending.

Other Loans and Advances

Other loans and advances consists of loan given by the Corporation of Rs.25,00,000 to Gujarat
Tractor Corporation Limited in the year 1991-92. The ownership of the said Corporation is changed
and transferred to Mahindra Gujarat Tractor Limited. As per GR No.GTC-1096-2181-K5 dt.23rd
March 1999 of Govt.of Gujarat the said liability of repayment of loan of Rs.25,00,000 is shifted
from Mahendra Gujarat Tractor Limited to Gujarat Industrial Development Corp.Ltd (G.I.D.C). Since
it is a long outstanding the corporation has made a provision of Rs.25,00,000 during the financial
year 2011-12.

Other Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received.

Other Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received contains Rs. 21,11,259
pertaining to the balance receivable from Union Bank of India (UBI).

There was fire at Corporation’s Juhapura Office and the Union Bank of India Extension Counter on
7th December 1992. The records lying at Juhapura office and Union Bank of India Extension
Counter were totally destroyed. Thereafter accounts were reconstructed from internal/external/
MIS Reports/other relevant information & evidences as available at that point of time. The result-
ant unreconcile balance receivable from UBI of Rs.21,11,259 was provided as doubtful deposit.

The Corporation had filed Civil Suit against the Bank of Baroda Navrangpura Branch Ahmedabad
in the year 1984 for appropriation of Rs.19,31,368 against the time deposit of Rs.22,00,000 with
the said bank. The appropriation by the bank was mainly on account of Letter of Credit amount
given to the Corporation on exports of Onion before realizing the money from bank by opening the
Letter of Credit. Since the buyer did not honour the Letter of Credit the amount of Rs.19,31,368
paid by Bank of Baroda was appropriated against the time deposit of the Corporation.

In the Financial year 2012- 2013 the corporation has made an additional provision of Rs.2,68,632
in addition to Rs.19,31,368 provided earlier against deposit with Bank of Baroda Navrangpura
Branch Ahmedabad of Rs.22,00,000.

Civil Suit filed by the Corporation has since been decided and the Court has awarded the decree
for Rs. 28,81,080 payment on defendant jointly and severally in favour of Corporation against the
following Letter of Credit issued in favour of:

(1) Bank of Credit and Commercial and International Overseas Ltd Sri Lanka
(2) Bank of Credit and Commercial and International Overseas Ltd Bombay
(3) M/s. VRM Brothers Sri Lanka and

(4) M/s Parikh Brothers Bombay

Incoem Tax Refund Receivable

Income Tax Refund receivable of Rs. 1,03,28,165 (Previous Year of 1,65,45,169) comprises of
refundable dues in respect of previous assessment years. The assessing authorities have not
released the refunds in respect of orders for refund passed by ITAT & CIT Appeals. Considering
the facts and circumstances underlying the Income Tax Refund Receivable, management has
found it necessary to make provision for sum of 96,86,592 (Previous Year: Rs. 1,60,56,586).



: GUJARAT AGRO INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LTD. '
11. Inventories
Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH | AS AT MARCH
31, 2016 31, 2015
Raw Materials 82,18,851 68,42,484
Finished Goods 1,43,33,251 2,21,67,438
Stock-in-Trade 1,19,56,92,625 39,30,20,295
Stores and Spares 5,56,328 5,60,366
Packing Material 63,47,241 73,43,597
Total 1,22,51,48,295 42,99,34,180
12. Other Non Current Assets Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH | AS AT MARCH
31, 2016 31, 2015
Non-Current Bank Balances
Balances with banks in Fixed Deposit Accounts
For More than 12 Months 1,56,45,903 2,22,37,354
TOTAL 1,56,45,903 2,22,37,354
13 Trade Receivables Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH | AS AT MARCH
31, 2016 31, 2015
Debt Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from
the date they are due for repayment
Secured - Considered good 4,01,36,895 89,22,164
Unsecured - Considered good 4,48,53,642 3,41,34,967
Doubtful 8,03,18,988 7,69,96,851
16,53,09,525 12,00,53,982
Less: Provision for doubtful trade receivables (8,03,18,988) (7,69,96,851)
8,49,90,538 4,30,57,131
Others
Secured - Considered good 8,59,57,835 6,14,78,236
Unsecured - Considered good 17,83,69,789 9,34,74,345
26,43,27,624 15,49,52,581
TOTAL 34,93,18,162 19,80,09,712

13.1 Provision for doubtful trade receivables includes provision of Rs. 16,214,542 (Previous year Rs.
138,40,002) is in respect of subsidy claim pending to be received for material issued to parties
under Bio-gas and other subsidies. The said claims are pending for more than 3 years because
certification of the claims is pending.

13.2 Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for
repayment of Rs. 4,01,36,895 ( Previous year : Rs. 89,22,164 ) and other receivables of Rs.
8,59,57,835 ( Previous Year : Rs. 6,14,78,236) are considered to be secured by the management
against security deposit received from respective persons and held by the Corporation.



14. Cash and Bank Balances
Amount in Rs
PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH | AS AT MARCH
31,2016 31, 2015
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand 5,73,890 3,54,371
Cheques drafts on hand 21,08,88,083 | 3,52,67,60,970
Balances with banks
- in Current Accounts 68,17,63,691 76,18,04,528
- in Fixed Deposit Accounts With original maturity of
Less Than 3 months 63,23,,32,265 13,33,05,000
Other Bank Balances :
3 months to 12 months 1,88,87,02,905 9,01,45,528

TOTAL 3,41,42,60,835 | 4,51,23,70,397
14.1 Balance with Banks in fixed deposits accounts comprises sum of Rs. 2,70,39,000 (Previous Year :
Rs. NIL ) pledged as security against the Bank Guarantees issued by Union Bank of India.
15. Short-Term Loans and Advances
Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH | AS AT MARCH
31, 2016 31, 2015

Unsecured , considered good
Inter Corporate Deposits
Guijarat State Financial Services

3,04,00,00,000

2,680,000,000

(b) Security deposits 2,39,130 2,39,205
(c) Loans and advances to employees 6,47,301 7,29,766
(d) Prepaid expenses 10,81,493 10,94,278
(e) Balances with government authorities
(i) CENVAT credit receivable 84,418 2,59,646
(i) VAT Refund receivable 50,44,560 21,75,211
(iii) Service Tax credit receivable - 2,050
(f) Advance to Supplier 51,77,630 14,60,236
(g) Others 7,09,517 16,47,557
TOTAL 3,05,29,84,049 | 2,68,76,07,950




16. Other Current Assets

Amount in Rs

PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH | AS AT MARCH
31, 2016 31, 2015
(a) Tangible fixed assets held for disposal
(Refer Note No. 16.1) 8,12,326 8,12,326
Less : Provision for loss on tangible fixed
asset held for disposal (5,62,326) (5,62,326)
2,50,000 2,50,000
(b) Subsidy Receivable 3,57,72,541 2,84,87,808
(c) Interest accrued on deposits 17,67,79,589 14,29,94,069
(d) Group Insurance Receivable 54,914 13,300
(e) Interest REceivable 12,64,536 -
TOTAL 21,41,21,580 17,17,45,177

16.1 Tangible Fixed Assets held for disposal

16.1.1 “Tangible fixed assets held for disposal” pertains to property named “Onion Meda” situated at
Vadali. The same had been disclosed in the block of “Fixed Assets” upto the year 2010-11 but
during the year 2011-12. It has been transferred under other current assets in accordance with the

Schedule Il to the Companies’ Act 2013.

16.1.2 The said property was sold at Rs. 2,50,000 and the possession had been passed on to the buyer.
Since the sale deed for the transaction has not been executed due to non-receipt of No Objection
Certificate (NOC) from Govt. of Gujarat the sale of property has not been given effect in the
financial statements. Consequently the sale proceeds of Rs. 2,50,000 are included under the head
“Other Liabilities” in “Note No. 6 Other Current Liabilities” and the Corporation has made “Provision
for loss on tangible fixed asset held for disposal” amounting to Rs. 5,62,326 in the financial year

2011-12.



GUJARAT AGRO INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LTD.

17 Revenue from Operations
Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31,2016 31,2015
(a) Sale of Products
Finished Goods 12,89,95,217 14,43,36,364
Trading Goods 3,69,60,83,132 3,00,34,96,841
3,82,50,78,349 3,14,78,33,204
Less: Excise duty -1,24,53,808 -1,18,80,227
3,81,26,24,541 3,13,59,52,978
(b) Income from Services 48,80,900 40,94,650
(c) Other Operating Revenues 20,50,000 23,55,000
TOTAL 3,81,95,55,441 3,14,24,02,628
17.1 Particulars of Sales of Products Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31,2016 31,2016
Finished Goods
Pesticides 10,88,61,455 10,89,01,577
Bio- Fertiliser(LIQ) 2,43,81,765 3,60,03,284
13,32,43,220 14,49,04,861
Less : Trade Discount -42,48,003 -5,68,497
Total 12,89,95,217 14,43,36,364
Traded goods
Chemical Fertilizers / Bio - Fertilizers 3,62,22,49,727 2,96,72,40,175
Agriculture Implants - 21,000
Seeds 53,85,405 8,65,060
Storage Bins 3,42,65,470 3,53,05,182
De-oiled neem cake (new) 3,41,55,011 -
Bio - Gas Material - 304
Agriculture Handtools 27,520 45,200
Others - 19,920
Total 3,69,60,83,132 3,00,34,96,841
Grand Total 3,82,50,78,349 3,14,78,33,204
17.2 Particulars of Income from Services Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31,2016 31,2016
Bio - Gas Supervision Charges 22,45,500 18,54,000
Bio - Gas Service Charges 26,35,400 22,40,650
Total 48,80,900 40,94,650
17.3 Particulars of Other Operating Revenues Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31,2016 31,2016
Agree business center registration fees 6,70,000 9,75,000
Aviation operation income 13,80,000 13,80,000
Total 20,50,000 23,55,000
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18 Other Income
Amount in Rs.

PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31,2016 31,2015

(@) Interest Income (Refer Note 18.1 below) 53,18,96,739 22,22,19,096
(b) Other non-operating income (Refer Note 18.2 below) 5,54,77,092 4,64,79,460
(c) Dividend received 83,400 83,400
(d) Excess provision for doubtful debts written back 8,97,862 12,54,649
(e) Increase / Decrease in Excise 13,35,635 -
(f)  Penalty Income 62,21,350 -
Total 59,59,12,078 27,00,36,605

18.1 Interest Income comprises: Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31,2016 31,2015

Interest on Bank Deposits 23,07,60,280 2,13,94,343
Interest on loans and advances 33,08,409 2,22,820
Interest on overdue trade receivables 2,99,95,241 1,86,29,208
Interest on Fixed Deposits with GSFS 26,67,34,195 18,19,67,194
Other Interest 5,328 5,531
Interest On Income Tax refund 10,93,287 --
Total 53,18,96,739 22,22,19,096

18.2 Other Non-Operating Income comprises: Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31,2016 31,2015

Cash Discount 3,31,61,126 1,49,68,911
Licence fees 1,60,27,391 57,51,510
Reimbursement of Expenses - 60,57,462

Sale of Scrap 53,230 40,829
Sundry Credit balances written back - 1,75,225
Tender fees 5,75,000 3,54,000
Forfeiture of Trade/ EM Deposit 9,55,000 5,50,000
Registration fees - 1,10,500
Renewal Fees from UT/ABC 4,76,500 2,85,900
Profit on sale of fixed Assets 8,28,635 -
Vatav kasar 189 9,066
Miscellaneous income 8,56,701 24,20,349

Prior Period ltems (Refer Note 18.3 below) 25,43,320 1,57,55,707
Total 5,54,77,092 4,64,79,460




18.3 Details of Prior Period Items: Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31,2016 31,2015
Rebate & Discount 21,983 5,900
Aviation operation Income - 13,80,000
Cold Storage Operation Income - 8,52,826
MFMS Charges 1,00,742 4,83,638
Godown Rent - 9,50,400
Reimbursement of Exp. - 94,23,236
Sundry Credit balance written back - 4,494
Fee received under RTI 1,932 -
EMD Forfeited 2,50,000 -
Excess provision of supervision charges - 92,700
Misc Income 21,68,663 22,38,462
Total 25,43,320 1,57,55,707
19 A Cost of Materials Consumed Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31,2016 31, 2015
Opening Stock

Opening Stock of Raw Material 68,42,484 1,60,93,657
Add :Purchases of Raw Material 5,37,18,641 5,56,33,535
6,05,61,125 7,17,27,192
Less: Closing Stock of Raw Material 82,18,851 68,42,484
Cost of Material Consumed 5,23,42,274 6,48,84,708

Material consumed comprises:
Imids 18.5/17.8.SI 32,13,938 71,96,826
Profenophos Tech 26,55,040 1,24,53,732
Remix 24,16,216 67,76,322
Melathion Tech. 17,14,777 32,54,955
Pendimithen 1,40,71,540 1,19,31,373
Pendimithen tec 8,21,183 -
Cholrphyriphos 32,86,696 60,40,265
Phorate 10 Cg 31,01,257 35,61,050
Fen Tech 25,55,438 23,91,106
Monocrotophos 18,77,154 -
Acephate 75 Sp 13,22,595 23,36,324
Cartap 37,10,180 -
Quanalphos 7,01,193 18,56,421
Mancozeb 75 Wp 13,49,960 14,383,357
Cyper Tech. 7,01,193 6,86,136
Cyclohexanone 6,15,884 -
Soapstone 2,39,425 12,640
Emulsifire Isro 6,36,408 9,02,732
Acetamprid 20 Sp 9,52,462 4,31,460
Others 63,99,735 36,20,009
Total 5,23,42,274 6,48,84,708




19 B Purchase of Traded Goods

Amount in Rs.

PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31, 2016 31, 2015

Purchase of Fertilizers 4,42,35,81,147 3,25,54,35,989
Purchase of Seeds 49,65,515 8,50,660
Purchase of Storage Bins 3,19,19,680 3,28,69,989
Purchase of De-Oiled Neem Cake 3,23,67,063 -
Purchase of Agriculture Implants - 18,525
Purchase of Agriculture Handtools 25,110 42,035
4,49,28,58,515 3,28,92,17,198

Less: Rebate Received 2,03,73,144 28,64,475
Total 4,47,24,85,371 3,28,63,52,722

19 C Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Stock-in-Trade

Amount in Rs.

Details of the Inventories at the end of the year:
Finished Goods

PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31,2016 31,2015
Inventories at the end of the year

Finished goods 1,43,33,251 2,39,05,596
Stock-in-trade 1,19,56,92,625 39,12,82,137
1,21,00,25,876 41,51,87,733

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 2,39,05,596 1,35,68,233
Stock-in-trade 39,12,82,137 7,24,25,002
41,51,87,733 8,59,93,235
Net (Increase) / Decrease -79,48,38,143 -32,91,94,498

Amount in Rs.

Pesticides
Liquid 89,70,212 1,63,61,616
W.D.P. 24,61,625 26,09,228
Dust 5,15,209 21,29,259
Granules 11,28,194 8,78,709
1,30,75,240 2,19,78,812
Bio-Fertilisers
Liquid 12,58,010 19,26,784
Total 1,43,33,250 2,39,05,596
Stock-in-trade
Fertilisers 1,19,50,60,501 39,07,38,617
Fertilisers Others (Micro) 1,60,714 75,448
Storage Bins 2,114 2,114
Others 4,69,296 4,65,958
Total 1,19,56,92,624 39,12,82,137
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20 Employee Benefits Expense

Amount in Rs

PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31, 2016 31, 2015
Salaries and wages 92,923,088 91,464,956
Salaries and wages 9,44,32,241 9,29,23,088
Contributions to provident and other funds 1,66,71,737 2,19,25,462
Staff welfare expenses 31,08,635 21,56,696
TOTAL 11,42,12,613 11,70,05,246
21 Finance Costs Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31, 2016 31, 2015
&) IRTerest EXpense -
Interest on security deposit 1,42,95,511 94,21,145
Interest paid to others 3,314 25,864
(b) Other Borrowing Cost :
Bank Charges 95,835 35,5634
TOTAL 1,43,94,660 94,82,543
22 Other Expenses Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31, 2016 31, 2015
Consumption of stores and spare parts 58,839 76,024
(Refer note 22.1 below)
Consumption of packing materials 1,23,00,051 1,74,10,860
(Refer note 22.2 below)
Power and fuel 26,50,954 26,07,286
Rent including lease rentals 62,80,635 65,10,819
Repairs and maintenance - Buildings 84,837 1,23,805
Repairs and maintenance - Plant & Machinery 5,54,660 57,595
Repairs and maintenance - Others 5,58,159 6,39,265
Insurance 15,95,624 16,05,525
Rates and taxes 25,83,258 20,80,414
Travelling and conveyance 43,31,830 35,68,830
Sales commission - 2,60,348
Sales discount 1,12,26,511 76,96,549
Business promotion 10,10,859 2,74,391
Legal and professional 88,69,746 63,94,522
Payments to auditors (Refer Note 23.5) 3,22,057 3,18,157
Loss on tangible fixed asset held for disposal 47,199 -
Provision for doubtful trade and other receivables 36,33,061 31,74,877
loans and advances
Supervision & Service Charges - Bio - Gas 10,83,547 10,34,138
Share of loss in O&M of APMC Mahuva 4,50,771 -
Prior period expenses (Refer Note 21.3 below) 32,89,338 11,85,071
Miscellaneous expenses (Refer Note 21.4 below) 1,96,97,565 1,91,02,847
Total 8,06,29,501 7,41,21,324




22.1 Details of Consumption of Stores & Spare Parts Amount in Rs.

PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31, 2016 31, 2015

Opening stock 5,60,366 5,81,718
Add: Purchases 54,801 54,672
6,15,167 6,36,390

Less: Closing Stock 5,56,328 5,60,366
Consumption 58,839 76,024
22.2 Details of Consumption of Packing Materials Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31, 2016 31, 2015

Opening stock 73,43,597 61,02,507
Add: Purchases 1,13,03,695 1,86,51,950
1,86,47,292 2,47,54,457

Less: Closing Stock 63,47,241 73,43,597
Consumption 1,23,00,051 1,74,10,860
22.3 Details of Prior period expenses Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31, 2016 31, 2015

Rent - 3,30,610
Counsultancy 20,100 4,050
Computer Charges 14,045 -
Service Tax 91,049 55,169
Interest 28,78,416 52,814
Repair & Maintenance 11,236 5,03,868
Telephone - 1,211
Electricity 10,126 30,401
Water Bill - 2,000
TA/DA Travelling Exp. 600 600
Rebates & Discounts 9,140 9,140
PF Admin Charges 52,218 65,124
Krushi Mahotsav Expenses - 1,300
Advertisement Exp - 33,600
Misc. Exps. 2,02,408 95,184
Total 32,89,338 11,85,071




22.4 Details of Miscelleneous Expenses Amount in Rs.
PARTICULARS AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31, 2016 31, 2015

Security charges 67,65,696 66,45,419
Office expenses 10,19,631 10,09,229
Entertainment expenses 6,21,050 5,48,961
Meeting expenses 9,24,914 56,037
Tender fees paid 1,23,937 88,486
Other expenses 98,450 2,63,267
Donation - 2,76,000
Computer & Internet 10,91,758 7,43,067
Membership fees 22,800 -
Bad trade and other receivables loans and advances written off - 53
Increase/Decrease in Excise Duty - 10,65,299
Subcontracting - Labour Contract 21,31,343 25,41,447
Water 1,55,318 1,26,737
Communication 12,63,921 12,45,447
Printing and stationery 10,85,478 11,79,793
Freight and forwarding 38,15,511 32,19,270
Subscription for periodicals 39,980 42,722
Factory expenses 87,152 16,354
Electricity expenses 12,275 9,991
Festival celebration expenses 11,275 17,500
Testing expenses 8,622 9,500
Vatav & kasar -268 -4,550
Garden expenses 1,10,784 120
INSPECTION CHARGES 8,500 -
Labour Charges 150 -
License fees 2,81,898 2,700
Labour Charges (Misc.) 17,390 -
Total 1,96,97,565 1,91,02,847




(I

Contingent Liabilities & Commitments
(I) Contingent Liabilities

PARTICULARS

Claims against the Company/ disputed
liabilities not acknowledged as debt
(a) Venfarm Chemicals Pvt. Ltd.

(b) Rayalseema Agro Enterprise

(c) M/s. Chems India - Hydrabad

(d) Khandelwal Fertiliser and Chemical
(e) Swastik Overseas Corporation

(f) M/s. National Adevertising Co. Ltd.
(g) Others

TOTAL

Other matters for which the Company is

contingently liable

(a) Disputed demand of the employees for wages
allowances and reinstatements

b) Disputed demand of Income tax

c) Disputed demand of Sales Tax (Refer Note No. 23.1.1)

d) Interest payable on ICD of GMDC

TOTAL

(
(
(

Bank Guarantee issued

Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed
on capital account and not provided for

23.1.1 Explanation to Note 23.1 (I) (B) (c)

Amount in Rs.

AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH

31, 2016

30,00,000
26,00,000
5,41,161
2,05,046
1,38,151
1,07,400
1,46,882
67,38,639

Unascertainable
94,86,000
2,72,000
30,76,62,000
31,74,20,00

1,68,52,000

2,62.83,872

31, 2015

30,00,000
26,00,000
5,41,161
2,05,046
1,38,151
1,07,400
1,46,882
67,38,639

Amount in Rs.

Unascertainable
94,86,000
2,72,000
28,76,62,000
29,74,20,000

7,03,72,183

Sales Tax department has raised sales tax demand of Rs. 8,61,344 against which the corporation
has already paid an amount of Rs.4,75,300 and an amount of Rs.1,14,508 is withheld by the
department. Based on the legal opinion, the amount already paid/withheld by the department is
likely to be refunded and the balance amount of Rs.2,71,536 is not likely to be payable. In view of the
same no provision has been made for Rs.2,71,536 and refunds if any shall be accounted for as and

when it will be received.



The year-wise position of pending / disputed assessment orders are given as under :

Amount in Rs.

AY. Name of the unit Amount of | Amount Paid / Outstanding Remarks
demand Provided Amount

1990 - 91 ASC - Surat 4,48,312 2,45,300 2,038,012 Appeal

1991 - 92 ASC - Surat 4,13,032 2,30,000 1,83,032 Pending at
Tribunal

Total 8,61,344 4,75,300 3,86,044
1989-90 ASC - Surat (Claim of refund withhold by the department) -1,14,508
Net Contingent Liabilities 2,71,536
23.2 As perAccounting Standard 15 (Revised), “Employee Benefits”, the disclosure of Employee benefits

as defined in the Accounting Standard are given below:
(a). Defined Contribution Plan

The Company has recognized an amount of Rs. 31,25,732 (previous year Rs.27,60,759) as expenses
(net of realised gains) under the defined contribution plan in the statement of Profit & Loss for the
year ended 31st March, 2016 towards provident and other funds.

(b). Defined Benefit Plan

The employee’s gratuity fund scheme managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India is a defined
benefit plan. The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method which recognize each period of service to build up the final obligation.
The obligation for leave encashment is recognized in the same manner as gratuity.

The most recent valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for
gratuity and leave encashment were carried out as at March 31, 2016.

The following table sets out the funded status of the defined benefit schemes and the amount
recognised in the financial statements:



Amount in Rs

Particulars

Gratuity (Funded) Leave Encashment (Funded)
For the year For the year For the year For the year
ended ended ended ended

March 31, 2016

March 31, 2015

March 31, 201

5

March 31, 2015

(a) | Reconciliation of opening and closing
balances of Defined Benefit obligation
Defined Benefit obligation at beginning of the year 10,85,50,090 | 9,79,55,272 | 5,24,05,513 4,76,97,815
Current ServiceCost 47,59,704 43,52,121 5,36,833 2,10,270
Interest Cost 85,64,602 89,53,112 41,34,795 43,59,580
Acturial(gain)/loss 6,18,006 72,18,484 21,34,966 49,70,554
Benefit paid -1,08,15,060 -99,28,900 -53,76,988 -48,32,706
Defined Benefit obligation at year end 11,21,77,342  110,85,50,090 5,38,35,119 5,24,05,513
(b) | Reconciliation of opening and closing balances
of fair value of plan assets
Fair Value of plan assets at beginning of the year 10,02,86,016 |10,16,28,689 | 5,01,32,188 5,06,43,605
Expected return on plan assets 79,12,567 88,41,696 39,55,430 44,05,994
Acturial gain/(loss) 4,46,827 -2,55,469 1,13,748 -84,705
Employer contribution 82,59,045 - 21,26,575 -
Benefits Paid -1,03,15,060 -99,28,900 -53,76,988 -48,32,706
Fair Value of plan assets at year end 10,65,89,395 |10,02,86,016 5,09,50,953 5,01,32,188
(c¢) | Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations
Fair value of plan assets as at 31st March 10,65,89,395 [10,02,86,016 5,09,50,953 5,01,32,188
Present value of obligation as at 31st March 11,21,77,342  110,85,50,090 5,38,35,119 5,24,05,513
Amount recognized in Balance Sheet -55,87,947 -82,64,074 -28,84,166 -22,73,325
(d) | Expenses recognized during the year
Current Service Cost 47,59,704 43,52,121 5,36,83 2,10,270
Interest Cost 85,64,602 89,53,112 41,34,795 43,59,580
Expected return on plan assets -79,12,567 -88,41,696 -39,55,430 -44,05,994
Net Actuarial(gain)/loss 1,71,179 74,73,953 20,21,218 50,55,259
Net Cost 55,82,918 1,19,37,490 27,37,416 52,19,115

(e) | Investment Details % invested % invested % invested % invested
Life Insurance Corporation Of India 100 100 100 100

(f) | Actuarial assumptions
Mortality Table (L.I.C) 2006-08 1994-96 2006-08 2006-06
(Ultimate) (Ultimate) (Ultimate) (Ultimate)
Discount rate (per annum) 0.0772 0.0789 0.0772 0.0789
Expected rate of return on plan assets (per annum) 0.0772 0.0789 0.0772 0.0789
Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05




23.3

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation take in to account
inflation seniority promotion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the
employment market. The above information is certified by the Actuary. The expected rate of return
on plan assets is determined considering several applicable factors mainly the composition of plan
assets held assessed risks historical results of return on plan assets and the Company’s policy for
plan assets management.

Segment information

The Company has identified business segments as its primary segment and geographic segments
as its secondary segment. Business segments are primarily Fertilizers and Pesticides. Revenues
and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment.
Expenses which are not directly identifiable to each reportable segment have been allocated on the
basis of associated revenues of the segment and manpower efforts. All other expenses which are
not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed as unallocable expenses. Assets and
liabilities that are directly attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under each reportable
segment. All other assets and liabilities are disclosed as unallocable. Fixed assets that are used
interchangeably amongst segments are not allocated to primary and secondary segments.



1. Information about Primary Business Segment: (Current Year 2015-16)
Amount in Rs.
Particulars Fertilizers Pesticides Services | Unallocated Grand Total
A. | Revenue
1a. Trading Goods (Net sales) 3,62,22,49,727 7,38,33,405 | 3,69,60,83,132
1b. Manufacturing Goods (Net sales) 2,43,81,765 9,21,59,644 11,65,41,409
1c.Other operating revenues 69,30,900 69,30,900
Total Net Sales 3,64,66,31,492 9,21,59,644 | 69,30,900 7,38,33,405 | 3,81,95,55,441
2a.0ther Income 59,59,12,078 [ 59,595,12,078
Total Revenue - - - | 59,59,12,078 | 59,595,12,078
Cost of sales 3,59,97,92,217 6,09,19,918 6,92,77,367 | 3,72,99,89,502
Other Expenses 9,25,23,240 1,95,41,595 10,83,547 8,32,89,000 [ 19,64,37,381
Segment Result (PBIT) -4,56,83,964 1,16,98,131 58,47,353 | 51,71,79,117 | 48,90,40,636
Interest payment 1,43,62,911 29,244 2,506 1,43,94,660
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional item -6,00,46,875 1,16,68,887 58,47,353 | 51,71,76,611 47,46,45,976
Exceptional items:
Computer Software Written Off
Profit/(Loss) before tax -6,00,46,875 1,16,68,887 | 58,47,353 | 51,71,76,611 | 47,46,45,976
Income Tax/FBT of earlier years (Excess)/
Short provision (Net) -31,68,953.00 [ -31,68,953.00
Provision for taxation - [17,57,48,524.00 (17,57,48,524.00
Profit/(Loss) after tax -6,00,46,875 1,16,68,887 | 58,47,353 | 34,45,97,040  30,20,66,405
Other information:
Segment Assets 3,84,46,87,826 3,12,73,800 5,14,27,06,335 | 9,01,86,67,961
Segment Liabilities 1,54,56,74,725 49,49668 7,46,80,43,568 | 9,01,86,67,961
Capital Expenditure 2,34,56,561 2,34,56,561
Depreciation & Amortisation 15,95,268 15,95,268
Non Cash Expenditure other
than Depreciation - - - 2,18,61,293 2,18,61,293




1. Information about Primary Business Segment (Previous Year 2014-15)
Amount in Rs.
Particulars Fertilizers Pesticides Services | Unallocated Grand Total
A. | Revenue
1a. Trading Goods (Net sales) 2,96,72,40,175 3,62,56,666 | 3,00,34,96,841
1b. Manufacturing Goods (Net sales) 3,60,03,284 9,64,52,854 13,24,56,137
1c.Other operating revenues 64,49,650 64,49,650
Total Net Sales 3,00,32,43,458 9,64,52,854 | 64,49,650 3,62,56,66 | 3,14,24,02,628
2a.0ther Income 27,00,36,605 | 27,00,36,605
Total Revenue 3,00,32,43,458 9,64,52,854 | 64,49,650 | 30,62,92,271 | 3,41,24,39,233
Cost of sales 2,93,41,52,270 5,41,09,453 3,37,81,209 | 3,02,20,42,933
Other Expenses 8,02,33,178 2,30,45,627 10,34,138 9,15,652 | 19,58,36,594
Segment Result (PBIT) -1,11,41,990 1,92,97,774 | 54,15512 | 18,09,88,410 | 19,45,59,706
Interest payment 94,49,149 29,171 4,223 94,82,543
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional item -2,05,91,139 1,92,68,603 54,15,512 | 18,09,84,187 | 18,50,77,163
Exceptional items:
Computer Software Written Off 20,24,482 20,24,482
Profit/(Loss) before tax -2,05,91,139 1,92,68,603 | 54,15512 | 17,89,59,705| 18,30,52,681
Income Tax/FBT of earlier years (Excess)/
Short provision (Net)
Provision for taxation 6,55,00,000 6,55,00,000
Profit/(Loss) after tax -2,05,91,139 1,92,68,603 | 54,15512| 11,34,59,705| 11,75,52,681
Other information:
Segment Assets 1,23,91,68,161 4,29,00,231 7,45,33,58,379 | 8,73,54,26,771
Segment Liabilities 89,19,67,118 1,29,21,560 7,83,05,38,093 | 8,73,54,26,771
Capital Expenditure 6,60,12,870 6,60,12,870
Depreciation & Amortisation 47,10,024 47,10,024
Non Cash Expenditure other
than Depreciation - - - 6,13,02,847 6,13,02,847




2. Information about Secondary Segments is not applicable.

23.4

23.4.1

Related party disclosures

Disclosure as required under AS 18 in relation to “Related Party”:

Sr.No. | Name of Related Party

Relationship

— Managing Director (Appointed on 17/01/2015)

1 Shri Babubhai Jebaliya Key Management Personnel
— Chairman
2 Shri K.S. Randhawa IFS

Key Management Personnel

23.4.2 Transactions during the year with related parties :

Amount in Rs

Nature of transactions Key Management Personnel
2015-16 2014-15
Remunaration to Chairman 1,80,000 1,17,500
Remunaration to M.D. 117,08,177 12,562,712
Directors’ Sitting fees 24,000 19,500
Reimbursement of Expenses to Chairman / Director 57,600 54,850
23.5 Payments to Auditors: Amount in Rs.
2015-16 2014-15
Audit Fees 2,86,250 2,70,900
Reimbursement of expenses 35,807 37,257
Total 3,22,057 3,18,157
23.6 Earning per Share : Amount in Rs.
Particluars 2015-16 2014-15
(a) Net profit after tax as per statement of Profit & Loss 30,20,66,405 | 11,75,52,680

attributables to Equity share holder (Rs.)
(b) Weighted average No. of Equity Shares used 8,08,250 8,08,250

as a denominator for calculating EPS

(c) Basic and diluted earning per share (Rs.) 374 145
(d) Face value er Equity share (Rs.) 100 100




23.7 Deferred Tax Liability / (Assets)

Deferred Tax liabilities / (Assets) are not recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and
Balance Sheet as per the requirement of AS 22 as specified under section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013, reade with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) rules, 2014.

23.8 Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder prescribe that company to
which these provisions apply, should spend in every financial year, at least 2% of the average net
profits made during the three immediately preceding financial years, in pursuance of CSR Policy.
The provisions pertaining to CSR as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable to
the Corporation. The financial details as sought by the Companies Act, 2013:

Amount in Rs.
Particulars 2015-16 2014-15
- Average Net Profit of the Company for the last 10,38,76,671 7,87,44,326
three financial years
- Prescribed CSR Expenditure 20,77,533 15,74,887
(2% of the average net profit as above)
- Total Amount actually spent on CSR Expenses during -- 2,51,000
the year (Contribution to Kanya Kelavani Nidhi)
- Amount Unspent, if any 20,77,533 13,23,887

23.9 Inthe opinion of the management, the Current Assets, Loans and advances are realizable at the
values stated in the financial statements in the ordinary course of business and adequate provision
for all known liabilities has been made in the accounts.

23.10 Balances of Trade receivable Trade Payable, Long Term Borrowings, Deposits given / taken,
Advance given / taken, Other Loans & Advances, ICD Given, and Other Current Liabilities are
subject to confirmation / reconciliation. Necessary adjustment if any will be made in the books on
receipt of the confirmation or on settlement with the parties.

23.11 Particulars of Confirmed balances are as under : Amount in Rs.
Particulars Total o/s Confirmed % to Total

Balance Rs. Balance Rs.
Bank Balances and Deposits 3,21,84,44,764 | 3,21,84,44,764 100.00
Account Receivables 34,93,18,162 - -
Account Payables 85,42,93,718 - -
Loans and Advances 3,30,75,47,764 | 3,04,00,00,000 91.91
Loans and Liabilities 20,00,00,000 - -
Other Current Assets 21,38,16,666 17,67,79,589 82,68
Other Current Liabilities 63,06,60,651 - -




23.12 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond
with the current year’s classification / disclosure.

23.13 Value of imports and value of raw materials materials consumed

(@) CIF value of import NIL
(b) Consumption of raw materials (Amount in Rs.)
2015-16 2014-15
Amount % of Amount % of
(Rs.) | consumption (Rs.) | consumption

Raw materials

Imported NIL NIL NIL NIL
Indigenous 5,23,42,274 100% | 6,48,84,708 100%
23.14 Expenditure in foreign Currency NIL
23.15 Earning in foreign currency NIL
For C R Sharedalal & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 109943W

J.K.Patel Chairman Managing Director
Partner (DIN) (DIN)

M. No.: 047136

Place : AHMEDABAD Place : GANDHINAGAR

Date : June 16, 2017 Date : June 16, 2017
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